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PROCEEDINGSS
CHAIRMAN UDDO: I’d like to call the meeting to
order. This is a meeting of the Legal Services Corporation

Reauthorization Committee, one of several that we‘ve held so

far, today, again, for the purpose of taking some testimony

from the public.

The members of the committee that are present are
Mr. Dana, Mr. Wittgraf, and Mr. Kirk and myself. In addition,
we have board member Blakeley Hall, and President Martin with
us. We are expecting other board members to jein us later.

As I understand it, Ms. Pullen will not be here; is that

correct?
| MR. MARTIN: She will not.
CHAIRMAN UDDO: Will not be here, okay.
MR. MARTIN: And Mr. Molinari will not, nor
Mr. Rath.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Before we get to taking testimony,
are there any matters committee members need to have discussed
or brought to the attention of the committee?

The schedule, if all goes well, is to take testimony
throughout the morning session. There is another committee

meeting which 1is scheduled to begin at noon, the board’s
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inspector general committee.

So we will have a little bit longer break at noon so
that that committee can engage in its business, and we will
probably try to reconvene this committee somewhere around
1:30, maybe as late as 2 o’clock, and in the afternoon, we
will completes the testimony,. if there are any that we don‘t
get in this morning.

In fact, I’m pretty sure that at least one of the
folks on the list will not be available until the afternoon
session, and after we completed testimony, we will delikerate
about what, if anything, the committee wants to do in
anticipation of the next board meeting.

So with that in mind, I believe that -- also, since
I mentioned this to Mr. Dana, we will consider a review of the
minutes that we’ve been given from the last meeting at the
portion of the meeting where we begin deliberation so as not
to delay the folks who have come here to testify this morning.

I might point. out that, generally, we’ve tried to
stay to about a 15-minute per person for the testimony, to try
to keep us on some kind of a schedule. So I‘d ask, if you
would, to try to keep your remarks within that time frame,

actually, a little less than that, so that we have some time
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to ask gquestions.

We have a short encugh list today that we can have a
little bit more flexibility te it, but we’re going to have to
adhere to it to some extent to try to get everything done that
we want done. So I would ask you to do that.

Is Mr. Davidson here yet? Mr. Davidson, 1f you
would come to the table. Mr. Davidson is the chairman of the
National Taxpayers Union, and we welcome him to our committee.

MR. DAVIDSON: Thank you. You may not feel that way
after you’ve heard what I have to say.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: We welcome all comments.

PRESENTATION CF JAMES DALE DAVIDSON
NATIONAL TAXPAYERS UNION

MR. DAVIDSON: Thank you. I represent the 200,000
paying members of the National Taxpayérs Union. We have
hundreds of thousandé of additional members, affiliated
members, in local organizations around the country, and a lot
of the thinking citizens, I think, share our view that the
Legal Services Corporation has not, in it history, provided an
efficient and responsible use of tax dollars.

We think a large part of the budget of this

organization is wasted, and we believe indeed that, overall,
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6
the effect of the organization has been to exacerbate the very
problem that it was meant to solve in the first place.
I have a written statement. I don’t know if you
have a copy of that. 1’11 be glad to make it available. The

idea of the Legal Services Corporation emerged from the

_recognition of a real need to secure effective and economical

- civil legal services for the poor.

The LSC, however, is a program that by its very
design necessarily reduces pressures for fundamental reform of
America’s incomparably inefficient and costly legal system.
It is this cost and inefficiency within the system which
constitute the great real barrier to adequate legal
representation generally in America, not merely for poor
people but for all people. .

Merely providing subsidies to lawyers, which I take
to be the principal function of this organization, does
nbthing to remedy the basic problem. Given the performance of
the Legal Services Corporation, or lack thereof, since its
creation some 25 years ago, we believe this board must address
whether or not the program should be reauthorized.

The LSC has not come close to achieving its stated

goal and has simply added another layer of fat to an already
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obese systen. We do not believe that it is in the best
interest of the American taxpayer or America’s poor to fund an
organization that actively seeks to add to the glut of
litigation in our system, which, by the way, is already an
extreme outlier in the whole world.

If you lock at every legal system in the world, ours
is by far the most inefficient. We have the highest density
of lawyers per capita or by any rating you would seek, and the
costs of most legal services in the United States on a
comparative basis are far higher than they are in other
countries.

For example, it takes 17 times as long to probate an
estate in the United States as it does in Great Britain, which
has very similaf laws. It takes many, many more dollars to do
these things.

We have 750,000 lawyers in the United States by one
accounting, which is far more than any other country. In
fact, we have two-thirds to three-gquarters of all the lawyers
in the world, and our lawyers have much more training than
other lawyers. So if we counted other people’s lawyers on the
same basis that they’d have to achieve accreditation in this

country, we’d have even a higher portion of the world’s
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lawyers.

We have four times as many per capita as Great
Britain, which, as I said, has a very similar legal system;
five times as many as Japan, as Germany; ten times as many as
France, and there are more lawyers within the Beltway, where
we sit today, than there are in all of Japan, and I think this
helps explain a good deal of why the United States has been
falling behind in world competition.

This combination of vast law firms, litigation for
profit, 1litigation supported by government, suing the
government, and obkscene costs is regarded by many economists
as one of the chief reasons why American industry has ceased
tc be competitive in many areas.

A federally funded agency designed to subsidize this
blight on America flies in the face of common sense. When we
first examined the Legal Services Corporation, we were shocked
by the flagrant abuse of taxpayer money.

The original goal of the LSC is not only not being
met, but it has been distorted to reflect a particular
political agenda. Tax dollars intended to ensure that all
members of our society have equal access to adequate legal

representation are instead being used to promote this social

Diversified Heparting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20008
(202) 628-2121




(4]

R 3 O

10

il

12

13

-l4

15

1ls

17

18

1%

20

21

22

reform agenda of the Legal Servicss attorneys.

This political activism comes at the expense of
those the program was intended to serve: America‘s poor. In
fact, by some estimates, only 20 percent of those eligible
individuals seeking legal assistance from the LSC are being
served. Meanwhile, we have a great deal of money which is
being devoted to programs which expressly are prohibited by
the Legal Services Act, the original authorizing legislation.

If this program is to be foisted upon the backs of
taxpayers, the government must, at a minimum, enforce the
regqulations designed to ensure a fair, nonpolitical program
aimed at the legal needs of the individuals, instead of
subsidizing the radical social reform agenda of Legal Services
attorneys who may otherwise be unenployable.

MR. KIRK: Mr. Davidson?

MR. DAVIDSON: Yes.

MR. KIRK: Would you tell me what you’re talking
about that’s not been followed by the enabling legislation?

MR. DAVIDSON: Yes. As I understand it, and our
;cesearchers have provided this backup to me, that we have
soliciting cases, which is prohibited by the original

legislation. We have lobbying, and we also have mirror
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10
operations, which have been set up to seek funding, and all of
these things were prohibited by the original authorizing
legislation, as we understand it.

MR. KIRK: Can I ask you one other question?

MR. DAVIDSON: Surely.

MR. KIRK: I reviewed your writing, here. Is it
your basic contention that Legal Services ought to be just
ocutlawed or reformed? I see some pieces of both of them in
your ==

MR. DAVIDSCN: Well, I have, 1like everybody, I
suppose, I wouldn’t want to have the best become the enemy of

the good. I believe that if we were starting afresh, or if it

were possible to convince the majority of members of Congress |

to do away with a 'government program, which is practically
impossible, I would say that this program is right at the top
of the list of those which richly deserves to be done away
with, because it actually stands in the way of enabling this
country to be able to get a grip on its very high legal costs.

I think that one of the first principles that we see
when a program like this is enacted, is that it removes some
of the pressure which cught to exist to reduce our costs to an

internaticnally competitive level.
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11

In other words, if the costs are too high for some
poor people to get service, we say "Fine, we’ll subsidize a
group of excess lawyers to provide that service."

,MR. KIRK: Just one comment. I think that mny
understanding is that Congress overwhelmingly has supported
continuing the Legal Services Corporation’s program.

MR. DAVIDSON: I’'m sure they’re oveﬁhelmingly in
support of continuing everything that they do, and that is the
big problem. So if you’re wondering about detentions in my
testimony between my desire to have the thing completely deep
sixed and the suggestions for more modest reform, may arise
from the recognition of some political reality that Congress
will never, except under extreme duress, defund anything,
however incompetent its operation or however small the
benefits of it might provide.

But, in any event, we believe that public funds are
unnecessary to ensure that the legal needs of the poor are
met. Funding from private organizations and state bar
associations as well as tax incentives or organizations and
normal legal firms that choose to represent low income clients
would do much more to address the need for individual client

services than the current federal progranm.
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But barring the total defunding of this subsidy
program, there are some fundamental changes that need to be
made to improve the serﬁices and practices of the LSC. The
use of private local mediation boards should be encouraged by
the LSC and the states over the use of the court system.

Mediation boards represent an attractive alternative
to litigation for low income individuals. These boards are
much less expensive than traditional 1legal services and
typically provide better access to legal help. The use of
mediation boards also serves to reduce the amount of cases
thrust upon our already swamped court system.

This achievement by itself should warrant increased
reliance on and expansion of the mediation system of conflict
resqolution. A good illustration of the success of this system
can be seen in the performance of the community boards in San
Francisco.

This group has handled roughly 3,000 disputes for
low and middle income individuals. The services were provided
at little or no cost to the litigants and an estimated one-
fifth of the average cost of the LSC community board mediators
now resolve more cases in San Francisco than jury trials at a

substantial savings to the taxpayer and to the entire
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13
community, and I might add, to the great benefit of these
people involved, these processes take much less time.

It seems patently obvious that this system of
conflict resolution is superior in every way except in the
payment of attorney’s fees to the current LSC system. The
potential savings to the taxpayer and improvgment in services
to the poor people provide compelling reasons. to eliminate the
LSC program entirely or significantly reduce its funding.

At a minimum, we believe competitive bidding for
federal grants should be instituted to ensure that the
agencies vying for federal funds are providing the best
service as possible.‘ As with most services, competition
provides an impetus for improved performance at low cost.

Ironically, this 1is or should be the gcal of
federally fuﬁded services. Basic field programs, the private
not-for-profit law offices that provide direct services to
eligible poor clients currently receive refunding
automatically. This method of refunding excludes other
potential providers of legal services to the detriment of the
client base.

This practice also exacerbat.es the entrenchment of

agencles focused on social reform and publicly funded lebbying
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14
rather than client services. Significant changes must also he
made in the manner in which the funds for the LSC are
distributed within the organization.

From an economic standpoint, the current operaticnal
structure of the LSC makes little sensea. Presumably, the
federal government endeavors to maximize the utility of any
taxpayer funded service. In the case of the Legal Services
Corporation, the goal ostensibly is to provide legal aid to as
many qualifying individuals as possible.

This, however, dces not ssem to be the goal of the
LSC attorneys. Testifying to this is the fact that a
significant portion of LSC funding goes to functions unrelated
to client services. For example, in 1989, roughly $44 million
of a $320 million appropriation went to fund programs such as
national and state support centers, which ars essentially
lobbying vehicles.

These support centers or think tanks are directly
involved in special interest, legal, and social research.
These activities take place at the expense of eligible clients
seeking legal assistance. Their actions reflect a disregard
for the lobbying restrictions in the LSC act, as well as a

distortion of priorities.
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Wwe find it unsatisfactory, to say the least, that
taxpayer money is being used to pfomote a particular political
agenda at the expense of the poor. There are innumerable
private organizations committed to forwarding particular
social causes. We see no reason why those Legal Services
lawyers who feel that they should be in that business don’t
just strike out on their own and do so without funding from
the citizenry at large.

The funding for these support centers, as I say, as
well as other programs not directly related <to client
services, should be cut or allocated to the basic field
program. |

In conclusion, we believe that the LSC progranm
should be entirely defunded. Howeve;,-we alsc understand how
loath the Congress is to eliminate inefficient, ineffectual
programs in favor of common sense low cost approaches. With
this in mind, we believe that the reforms contained in the
McCollum/Stenholm proposal H.R. 1345, have an opportunity of
effecting some marginal change in the program.

It is our hope that the Congress and this board will
loock favorably upon such changes, both for the sake of the

taxpayer as well as America’s poor whose legal needs are not
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16
being met under the current system.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I thank you, Mr. Davidson.
Questions from the committee. We’ll start with Mr. Kirk.

MR. KIRK: Mr. Davidson, you make kind of a
conclusion regarding the support centers involved in special
interest, legal, and social research. What are you talking
about?

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, I’m talking about the fact that
these groups basically =-- I don’t know. I think it would be
very useful. And I’d love to see a study that could ‘be done
that could put a value or a cost on the total cost that has
come from society because of' the special interest lobbying
which has been done and litigation that originated with the
LSC that has raised the costs of the.government in many areas.

We have case after case where LSC sponsored lawyers
are suing the government to increase the costs of various
types of programs which are not at all within the range of
what one would contemplate in terms of access to the courts.

I mean, we're talking about access to the courts.
It’s not that a poor person simply can’t find money to pay a
lawyer to perform a legal service, which is required in the

course of his 1life. We have, instead, situations where LSC

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 843
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 628-2121




» 10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

17
lawyers are standing around thinking up schemes that they can
use to sue the govermment to create broader funding for
various programs, to require that more money be spent in one
place or another. I mean, we have example after example of
that.

MR. KIRK: Is that what you mean by special
interest, legal, and social research?

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, it certainly fits my definition
of special interest research. I mean, these are things that
-- people who have proposed additional funding for certain
programs in the political process have been thwarted by the
democratic representatives in the country, but they find a way
to guarantee this by using litigation as a social, as a means
of social activism.

There are many different law firms that -are
organized as socially active law firms. There are legal
foundations on all sides of the spectrum that do this type of
research. The American Civil Liberties Union is such an
organization that sues people for a variety of reasons and
takes up the support of pecple who it feels are ill-served by
the legal process.

But they also are definitely pushing a political
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agenda, and my fault with the LSC is that it is alsc pushing a
political agenda. It is not merely providing law services to
people who find that they don’t have the money to pay for it.

MR. KIRK: I guess I have nothing else.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr, Wittgraf?

MR. WITTGRAF: Thank vyou, Mr. Chairman. Mr.
Davidson, it’s difficult for me to know where to begin. I
guess, on the one hand, I certainly sympathize with the
concept you’ve endorsed of forms of alternative dispute
resolution, and you’ve cited an example of how that’s worked
particularly effectively, apparently, in the San Francisco
area.

I’'m not sure how universally applicable that 1is

.across the geography across the country, and these kinds of

resources that exist in San Francisco don’t typically exist in
most parts of the country, but beyond that, I fear that your
knowledge of what the Legal Services Corporation and its
grantees do is woefully slim.

I look particularly at the second page of your
statement, and I think you read this second paragraph there,
two-thirds of the way through, that you indicate that much of

the funding for the Legal Services Corporation is being
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channeled into programs intended solely for political
activism.

I guess, as I have visited with some Legal Services
projects around the country, the recipients of most of the
Legal Services Corporation funds, I haven’t had occasion to
reach that conclusion. I’m wondering if you gdt any specific
examples or specific data to support that conclusion.

MR. DAVIDSON: Yes. We would be glad to provide for
the record, fér this board, illustrations of the specific
abuses that we believe are entailed in this, including such
things as imposing quotas of various kinds that have been
promoted by the Legal Services lawyers, and as I said, we’ll
be glad to give you a long list.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I have to intervene just a second
here, Mr. Davidsen. I was kind of hoping you’d bring that
with you, because the committee 1is deliberating this
afternoon. This is our fourth in a series of hearings on this
question, and if your list is going to be helpful to us, we
really need it before this afterncon.

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, we’ll try to have it
messengered over to you by the close of business today.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: We’re going to need it earlier than
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that. We’re deliberating this afternoon.

MR. DAVIDSON: There’s no problem. We can get it to
you earlier than that.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Okay. I‘m sorry, Mr. Wittgraf.

MR. WITTGRAF: I guess, when I see a statement that
says "much of the funding," I don’t know .if that means a
majority or not. I assume it’s a substantial portion, in any
case. You’rg alleging that you have data that suggests that a
substantial portion of the Legal Services Corporation funds in
a given fiscal year are used solely for political activism?

MR. DAVIDSON: I think it’s common knowledge. I'm
surprised that you’re surprised, actually, Mr. Wwittgraf.

MR. WITTGRAF: I am surprised, and it is not common
knowledge to me, and it could be a reflection of my woeful
ignorance rather than yours, but I‘m wondering, as Mr. Uddo
suggested, that if you’ve got that Xkind of data that
substantiates that, we’d certainly like to have it.

MR. DAVIDSON: You will have it today.

MR. WITTGRAF: Perhaps you and I have a different
view of what political activism is. Maybe if you made just a
comment about what you intended by the term there, "political

activism," maybe that would narrow the differences between us.

Diversified HAeparting Services, Ine.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 628-2121




10

11

12

13

14 .

15

16

17

i3

19

20

21

22

‘ 21
MR. DAVIDSON: Well, let me put it this way. I

think if you and I decided today, granted that we could agree

' on something, that we were going to start an organization to

pursue any type of purpose, there would be a whele range of

particular steps that we could take to try to get those views
implemented into law, to make them effective in the political
process, which could include such things as sending people
door-to-door; it could include putting out press releases; it
could include funding research that could be useful to people
in either lobbying or litigation. It could include this whole
broad range of things.

Now, political 1lobbying, as you know, is a very
subtle process. It involves lots of different steps over a
broad sweep of human activities, and I think that it is beyond
question that a large part of what is done at the support
centers. that you fund 1is political 1lobbying and special
interest agitation.

MR. WITTGRAF: Okay. Now, you referred there to the
support centers, and as you indicated in your one example
going back to 1989, it’s only a small fractionvof the Legal
Services Corporation.

MR. DAVIDSON: More than 10 percent.
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MR. WITTGRAF: Right, but that’s a small fraction.
I mean, a tenth, to my mind, is a small fraction.

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, at $44 million, it’s a
tremendous amount of money. If you took all the money that is
contributed voluntarily to Common Cause, the National
Taxpayers Union, Citizens for a Sound Economy, and the other
leading public citizens organizations, they would come to less
than you’re spending.

Se that is a substantial amount of money as a
proportion of the total amount that is spent in wvoluntary
citizen activity in this country.

MR. WITTGRAF: Being from a small town in the middle

of the country, to me, $40-some million is a lot, certainly,

but what I’m wondering is, you start off by saying much ‘of the
funding for the corporation. We now come back to this 10 or
11 or 12 percent of the funding that has to do with the
national and the state support centers.

I’m wondering if you could be a little more specific
about what it is the support centers do ‘that represents
lobbying or political activism. To my understanding, they do
research, and they share information regarding pending

litigation, and they encourage certain 1litigation, and
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certainly I’d agree with you that they have sued many
government entities; federal, state, and local. Is that
political activism?

MR. DAVIDSON: Sure it is. Sure it is. I mean, if
you gave me $44 million and a battery of lawyers to go out and
sue governﬁent agencies in order to achieve the-changes that I
believe ought to be made in the law, I could assure you that
we would have some effect in making the government more
efficient than it is.

Unfortunately, the thrust of the 1litigation that
comes from your shop is almost entirely to make it less
efficient, and that is one of the things that I object to. I
don’t see why, as a taxpayer, and I speak, I think, with the
wholehearted empathy of great many people in this country, we
should be forced to pay through our tax money to have pecple
lobbying to raise our total costs.

If you locock at what happens in Washington, one of
the things that you do, and I don’t think this is unigque to
your organization, and, in fact, it’s symptomatic of what
happens in this country; 140 different representations are
made in the halls of Congress to raise government spending for

every single representation that is made to curtail costs and
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improve efficiency, and a great portion of that, about 60
percent of those representations, are funded by the citizens
who are obliged to pay people to come forward to make the caée
for more funding for their agency, and that is certainly true
of the Legal Services Corporation.

| If we had an offsetting group whoée only job it was
is to look at the waste and incompetence and unpleasant
effects that arise from various government programs and then
stand up and lobby and have a huge battery of lawyers to file
lawsuits, we’d have a much different political composition in
this country than we do.

MR. WITTGRAF: Mr. Uddo, rather than --

MR. KIRK: May I ask a specific question?

MR. WITTGRAF: Do you want to defer some of yours?

CHAIRMAN UDDO: We’re short on time. Mr. Kirk?

MR. KIRK: In my local office, Mr. Davidson, they
sued Social Security because they weren’t getting out the
checks within a certain amount of time that they were supposed
to, and people were not being able to pay their rent and all.
Is that the kind of suit against the government that you’d
like to restrict?

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, 1listen, I think, obviously,
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Social Security should send its checks out on time. However,

I think that if it doesn’t send its checks out on time, that

is a job for our elected representatives and the organization
of the Social Security Administration. It is not a job for a

group of gadflies spunded by the government to go in, because

you could sue them for any other sort of thing, and you have

sued a lot of agencies in ways that raise the costs of deoing
business in this country.

The other point that I‘d like to make, and this is
something that I noticed that none of you had so far deigned
to pick up on. Why is it that this country is such an outlier
in +terms of costs, legal costs, as compared to our
competitors?

Why is it that the Japanese can do business with a
fair chemical trace of a legal expense that we have that this
country has to not only have this huge blight of lawyers that
plagues our society, but that we have to subsidize it and to
employ otherwise unemployable lawyers in avocations, which is
what it amounts to.

MR. EKIRK: I agree with you, but I’m not sure the
Legal Services Corporation can solve that issue.

MR. DAVIDSCN: Well, what percentage of the total
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litigation in this country do you believe the Legal Services
Administration is involved in? Do you have any figures on
that?

MR. KIRK: I'm sure it’s less than 1 percent.

MR. DAVIDSON: Are you sure?

MR. KIRK: Yes. I'm certainly as sure as you are of
many of the statements you’vermade in your prepared remarks.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Okay. Let me see if --

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, if you can find an error of
fact in my statements, I’1ll gladly retract anything I‘ve said,
but we’re not talking about facts, we’re talking about
interpretation, and I have as much right to interpret as you
do.

MR. KIRK: - Certainly, céertainly. I don’tlfind any
error of facts. I’m hoping to f£ind some facts, and that seems
to be the problem, and if we could have some facts, it would
be very helpful. If there are the abuses to which you’ve
alluded in general terms, we’d like +to have the specific
examples of those abuses, certainly.

‘ CHAIRMAN UDDO: Let me go to Mr. Dana, then.

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, you will have them.

CHAIRMAN UDDC: Mr. Dana.
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MR. DANA: Mr. Davidson, I understand that your
organization supports the McCollum/Stenholm legislation as an
alternative to actually doing away with the corporation.
MR. DAVIDSON: Yes, we do.

MR. DANA: Because your view is that it’s a waste of

-the taxpayers’ money, if I read you correctly.

MR. DAVIDSON: I do believe that. I think it’s not
only a waste of taxpayers’ money, but I think that in the long
term that it rebounds to the detriment of the poor, whom it is
meant to serve, because it subsidizes this gigantic
hypertrophy of legal process, which, if it were not there, we
would have greater pressures to reform the legal process where
it needs reforming, which is in ways that reduce the costs of
access to the legal system. |

It seems to me that it’s Jjust as if we had an
automobile industry which was so inefficient that a car costs
$100,000, and then we had a lot of people complaining that the
poor have to go afcot, and sc the way to so far that problenm
is to create an automobile services corporation to subsidize
that provision of $100,000 cars to poor people.

That is not the solution. The solution is to reduce

the costs, and that can only be done if we reform this
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process, the legal process in this country, and make it at
least competitive with those of our other western countries
that we compete with in the world market.

MR. DANA: Do you Jjoin with others who are
supporting this legislation because they argue that if it’s
passed, that Congress will spend more money on the Légal
Services Corporation?

MR. DAVIDSON: No. I don‘t support it for that
reason. I think that there are good reasons for supporting
it, including the much stricter regulation of nonexisting
lobbying that Mr. Wittgraf can‘t find evidence of.

The authors of this legislation certainly believe
that there is a portion of the Legal Services Corporation
which is devoted to 1obbying and agitation, which we would
like to see curtailed, and I <think that any effective
curtailment of that function of the Legal Services Corporation
would be more than offset, would more than offset any increase
in funding that might arise as a result.

My basic view is that we’ve got to reform this whole
process, and the Legal Services Corporation, just like the
Automotive Services Corporation, is going in the wrong

direction. It is subsidizing high costs rather than trying to
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reduce them,

MR. DANA: Would you help me to understand why it is
that denying poor people the representation that they get
through the Legal Services Corporation is going to help reform
the system? Did I read you correctly that the reason that it
will help it is that it would build up such a pressure for
reform because these people will be denied representation that
some change may come out of that explosion of the population
that results? Is that your --

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, let me see if I can put it in a
way that will be satisfactory to you and explain also to
anybody who is curious what I‘m really thinking about.

We have, in this country, a great surplus of
lawyers. By any cross-national comparison, we have plenty of
lawyers. There are plenty of lawyers available. There are
many, many law firms. In the past, professionals have
provided gratis or pro bono service as part of their
operation.

Now, we have, in the centers of many big cities

today, law firms going out of business. Webster and Sheffield

which John Lindsay was a member of, a big, old line law firm

in New York has just gone under within a few months.
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Other big law firms are going under. There are too
many lawyers by a long shot. There are very many ways that we
can provide lower cost legal services, including pro bono
work, which could be subsidize through the tax process, as I
indicated. I talked about the national =--

MR. DANA: Excuse me. What I don’t understand is
why it is that doing away with funding for lawyers for poor
pecple is going to help change the American legal system.

MR. DAVIDSON: It’s going to help in several ways,
as I indicated. For example, the alternative process, which
is already taking place in spite of the Legal Services
Corporation, which we see working in San Francisco, 1is
producing better results for the poor people who are the
ostensible clients for this agency. .

It costs the litigants nothing or almost nothing in
most cases. The total costs are a fifth of the LSC costs.
Now, we’re talking, again, about a tremendous multiple of
costs. Now, that ought to be something that would attract
attention. Why can’‘t we do more of that, instead of having
the government suing the government through this process?

You can look at what you’re doing in a number of

ways. One thing you can certainly say is this organization,
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the Legal Services Corporation, employs a lot of lawyers who
would otherwise not be employed, many of them, and if they
were not employed, that would drive down the cost of the legal
systen.

Because you basically have a situation where if you
have a lawyer who is 'employed -— unlike in most types of
enterprise, where if you have a lot of people inveolved in a
process, you have more competition, if you have a lot of
lawyers employed, and somebody will hire a bunch of lawyers to
sue somebody else, yoﬁ suddenly employ two lawyers.

For every lawyer who 1is employed, there’s at least
another one on the other side of the case who is being sued
for something, and we think that this process has gone far too
far. 1It’s an extreme that has never been seen in the history
of the world, and the best way to-resolve the problem is to
begin to make the reforms that are necessary to lower the cost
of legal services.

If these centers in San Francisco, the community
boards and the mediation processes, can resolve these problenms
faster, cheaper, more satisfactorily, why don’t we depend on
those solutions, rather than hiring expensive lawyers to sue

other lawyers and a much more protracted process, which alsco
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involvaes the complications which many citizens have a right to
find distasteful, which are people paid by the taxpaver
lobbying against thé taxpayers’ interest proposing social
views and political activism which those who have paid for
that policy may themselves dislike?

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you. I'm going to forego
other board members, because we went a little bit over time
there. Mr. Davidson, two things: I’d just like to point out
to you that the corporation has supported alternative dispute
resolution.

In fact, this committee, as one of its resolutions,
in 1its process, has, in the reauthorization process,
recommended continued support and development of alternative
dispute resolution.

MR. DAVIDSON: Well, you have my support in that,
and congratulations. I think that is a step in the right
direction.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: sécond thing, if we are going to be
able to consider the specifics that you have, we really need
them probably before about 2 o’clock.

MR. DAVIDSON: All right. We will see that you get

a specific list.
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CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you very much, Mr. Davidson.
gur next witness is Mr. Mike Gempler, the Washington Growers
League. Mr. Gempler, welcome to the committee.

PRESENTATION OF MIKE GEMPLER

NATIONAL COUNCIL OF AGRICULTURAL EMPLOYERS

MR. GEMPLER: Thank you for allowing me to come here
and speak to you teday. I have some handouts, and literaturé
that Mr. Boehm will distribute to you after he makes enough
copies for everyone, probably after this hearing.

My name is Mike Gempler, I’m manager of Washington
Growers League. We’re headquartered in Yakima, Washington,
and it’s in central Washington. It’s an agricultural area
where we, obviously, dgrow a lot of apples, asparagus, hops,
vegetables. It’s like a 1little cCalifornia, basically. We
represent farmers all over the state, the berry farmers in the
northwest, oyster farmers, cranberry farmers; it’s a great
diversity.

Our purpose, our organization’s purpose, is to
provide information and representation to farmers on labor
issues, and we began about four years ago. In 1987, the
Immigration Reform and Control Act was a major catalyst' in our

formation, along with the development of gquite a few other
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regulations.

So we published a lot of educational literature for
farmers, all on labor issues, and we get involved in all the
labor issues that impact our members. I personally live out
in an orchard and am involved in the farming of wine grapes,
and I have a first~hand view of what’s going on.

Most of my friends are linvolved in production
agricultural. I represent hundreds, hopefully soon to be
thousands, of farmers who meet major payrolls every week.
What I hear is that here in Washington, D.C., people in charge
of the Legal Services Corporation don’t believe that there is
any sort of problem that exists in agricultural, and it’s my
objective today to convince you that indeed we see some very
substantial problems with the way the Legal Service
Corporation carries out its duties in agricultural litigation.

I think there are some solutions, and I think
substantial reform in certain areas is the solution, and I'm
hoping to convince you to support that kind of reform. The
major problem, as I see it, is unmeritoriocus litigation.

Claims are made that simply don‘t have merit or
very, very little merit, maybe a minor technical wvieolation.

And the way it typically unfolds is that a client, a seasonal
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agricultural employee, feels that he’s been wronged, and maybe
he justifiably feels he’s been wronged.

There’s miscommunication, maybe there was an honest
mistake in a count of how many bins of apples the particular
person picked, or maybe they were actually ripped off. I
mean, that happens, toco. But in any case, if that person
seeks representation, that person doesn’t always get involved
in the case and docesn’t really follow the case.

There’s no incentive for that employee, who is that
plaintiff, to really make sure that his claim has merit.
There’s no incentive for anybody to make sure that claim has
merit, the attorney included. So the case takes off, and it
has to go through discovery, and particularly, when you have
agricultural employers who have hundreds of employees for a
short period of time, you end up with a lot of plaintiffs.

If you have to depose, say, 40 plaintiffs in a case
on a minor technical violation, and they all need translators,
you’re looking at deposition costs maybe $5,000 a day, and you
have Joe Orchardist with 50 acres of apple trees, that stacks
up pretty fast. |

If he wants to go through the discovery period to

prove his innocence, I mean, he’s going to have to incur that
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liability, and potentially, if he loses, he’s going to have to
pay that. Hopefully, the system would bear éut that this is
an unmeritoricus case, and you could have it thrown out on
summary judgment.

I’m not a lawyer, I'm not a tachnical expert, but it
never works that way. Apparently, there are barriers that
don’‘t let that happen, and c¢learly these cases are not
meritorious cases. Most of them would not be taken by lawyers
who are not funded publicly, who are not essentially free
lawyers.

CHAIRMAN UDDC: Mr. Gempler, I'm going to interrupt
you just for a second early on, because I can see the same
question is going to develop. Did you bring anything with
you? I mean, you got some things about specific cases that we
can lock at?

MR. GEMPLER: Yes, right now.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Good.

MR. GEMPLER: 7That was the warm-up period.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: All right.

MR. GEMPLER: I have some case descriptions here,
and I’ll go through them, and I’1l try and make it very quick.

The names have been removed more anonymity’s sake.
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Case No. 1: In this case, many of the plaintiffs,
at least ten out of the 40 did not know that they were named
as plaintiffs in the case. There were alsoc at least five
plaintiffs named who had never been employed by the defendant.

The case was a "nuisance value" case, in which the
original cause for suit, which was an alleged Migrant Seascnal
Worker Protection Act violation was a minor claim, but it
resulted in legal fees of over $40,000 in a settlement that
was disproportionately small, $7,000.

° Case No. 2: Another so-called "nuisance value"

case, in which c¢laims of multiple MSWPA violations led to --

MR. WITTGRAF: Can I interrupt, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN UDDQO: Sure.

MR. WITTGRAF: Let’s go back to case No. 1 for just
a moment. Now, how many plaintiffs were there originally?

MR. GEMPLER: Forty.

MR. WITTGRAF: And there were some, you say, who did
not know they were plaintiffs?

MR. GEMPLER: Correct.

MR. WITTGRAF: Okay. That was about ten?
MR. GEMPLER: Correct.
MR

. WITTGRAF: And there was an additional five who
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couldn’t be found to exist?

MR. GEMPLER: No. They existed. They were named,
but they had never been employed by the farmer.

MR. WITTGRAF: Okay. So that’s five in addition to
ten. That’s 15 out of 407

MR. GEMPLER: Right.

MR. WITTGRAF: The 25 remaining, then, apparently
did get some kind of what you called 'nuisance value"
settlement, I think.

MR. GEMPLER: Correct.

MR. WITTGRAF: Were the claims, then, of those 25,
so far as you know, legitimate claims?

MR. GEMPLER: It was a technical viclation of the
Migrant Seasonal Worker Protection Act that within the scope
of that law were legitimate to be brought.

MR. WITTGRAF: Thank you,

MR. GEMPLER: Yes. But my point here is that the
amount of money that it tock to resolve this case was very
disproportionate to the amount of damages. If we went into
detail, I think you would see it was a very minor thing.
There was no dishonesty involved.

MR. KIRK: How much did you spend on attorney’s
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fees? .

MR. GEMPLER: Over $40,000 in that particular case.

MR. KIRK: For a $7,000 settlement?

MR. GEMPLER: Correct. And that’s just what we
could get Evergreen to -~ or the employer could get Evergreen
to settle for. |

Case No. 2: This is a particularly powerful
example, I believe, and there are letters that will be
provided to you in chronological order pertaining to this
case.

It’s a nuisance wvalue case in which claims of
multiple MSWPA violations led to a demand by the Legal
Serﬁices attorney. to pay damages of approximately $20,000 or
else face costly and protracted-litigation.

Now, this was after, I believe, four letters, an
exchange of two letters each, in which they started out -- it
was Texas Rural Legal Aid, an out of state grantee -- on
behalf of a family working up in Washington State.

They eventually got to $20,000, and the gist of case
is they realize they had absolutely no case, but they demanded
$20,000 bécause they knew they could get it, and that’s

basically what they say in the letter, and the letters are
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provide to you. They make the threat of protr{;ctad and costly
litigation unless you give us the 20 grand.

"We know you’‘re not guilty of any MSWPA violations.
We know we have no cases, now that you’ve szent us this
evidence in your letters, but to come down here to Texas and
try this case, it’s going to cost you a lot of money. Se
$20,000, or we go all the way with it."

CHAIRMAN UDDQO: Ken has those letters?

MR. GEMPLER: Yeah. You bet.

MR. WITTGRAF: = Was that litigation in Texas or
brought by Texas Rural Legal Aid?

MR. GEMPLER: Brought by Texas Rural Legal Aid.

MR. WITTGRAF: It’s actually in the State of
Washington, was it not? |

MR. GEMPLER: The claim was made against the
Washington State employer.

MR. WITTGRAF: You were saying "come dcwn here,"
which I thought meant from the State of Washington to the
State of Texas. I think TRLA probably brought it in the State
of Washington, didn’t it?

MR. GEMPLER! You know, I am not sure. I was

informed by the attorney representing the grower that it would
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have to be tried in Texas, and that’s as much as I know.

MR. KIRK: Go ahead, sir.

MR. GEMPLER: There are four letters, I believe,
pertaining to that case. Case No. 3: A dispute over an
alleged underpayment of $4,360.80 resulted in an initial
demand letter from Evergreen Legal to the grower for $152,000
in damages, and that letter is also provided to you; it’s the
last letter in your packet.

The Evergreen Legal Services attorney refused to
make a reasonable settlement offer. The case was ultimately
settled one day before trial, after great legal expense by the
grower, for a total settlement of's,ooo. This case was also a
nuisance value case in which the settlement was made without
regard to ﬁerit for the facts in the case.

MR. KIRK: Are you saying he paid the $9;000
probably earlier, but then waited until the day before trial
to accept?

MR. GEMPLER: (Nodding)

MR. KIRK: What were the attorney’s fees in that
case?

MR. GEMPLER: I don’t know what the total attorney’s

fees were. I believe they were over $10,000. The estimated
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trial cost was at least $20,000, bhecause of the number of
plaintiffs, and so they settled immediately before trial.

Case No. 4: A case in which the employer’s
bookkeeper accidentally overpaid 19 employees by $7,125. She
made a mistake in calculations, paid gross wages instead of
net wages. Acting on the advice of a U.S. Department of Labor
and Wage an Hour agent out of region 10 in Seattle, the
employer attempted to recoup the over payment by deducting the
money from employee’s pages.

Washington state law prohibits wage deductions
unless prior consent has been given by the emplovees, other
than those that are required by law. The U.S. Department of
Labor agent didn’t know that, and the grower, not being an
attorney and not up on those technicalities and all didn’t
know that. '

A complaint was made by an employee, when he
received a slimmer check than he anticipated, through
Evergreen Legal Services about the final deduction. The
Evergreen attorney was fully aware from the beginning of the
advice of the U.S. Department of Labor agent, yet made an
initial demand of the employer for payment of $76,000.

Remember, the overpaylnent that this grower was
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trying to get back was $7,125. So there was no attempt to
really Just resolve the issue and solve the problem for the
employees, but rather punishment right away, the extortiocn
routine.

The Evergreen attorney never Jlowered the demand
below $42,000 until brought bhefore a U.S. magistrate for.
settlenent conference. The empleoyer eventually settled for
23,000 because the Evergreen attorney was forcing the
unnecessary depositions of the 19 plaintiffs and making the
process of discovery and the trial burdensome and expensive.
Clearly a nuisance value case where trial was avoided by
settling out of court.

No. 6, I’ll skip over one here, in case we run out
of time, a case in which Evergreen Leéal knew the employer was
using the Interstate Clearance Order system run by the United
States Department of Labor.

The. grower was paying wages approved by USDOL.
There’s a lot of regulation and oversight of this program.
U.S. Department of Labor is intimately involved. Evergreen
sued the employer and the United States Department of Labor in
order to change an interpretation by U.S. Department of Labor

by approving pilece rates equaling prevailing wages, their
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calculation methed.
| U.S. Department of Labor settled out of court on
undisclosed terms with Evergreen Legal Services, including
U.S. Department of Labor agreeing to change the interpretation
in gquestion. Evergreen then continued suing the emplover
despite the U.S. Department of Labor settlement. |

The named plaintiff in this case worked only for 29
hours for the employer then suffered an apparent industrial
injury. The employer offered to pay for the transport of the
injured employee back to his home state of Texas, and in
return, the pilaintiff signed a release of all claims related
to employment, which was drafted by Evergreen Legal Services.

The plaintiff and Evergreen Legal Services did not
abide by the release, and Evergraen pursued the suit against
the employer.

Case No. 8: During a strike at a Washington
orchard, a preliminary injunction was obtained by the employer
against continued picketing by the United Farm Workers of
washington state, an agricultural labor union.

It was during pruning in an orchard. There was no
actual representation by this union. It was their first

attempt at organizing in central Washington in quite a few
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years, and they had a big march with church leaders and so on;
it was a big media event, and they wanted to get a good start,
basically. ‘

The foreman, who managed the ranch, had a wife who
had cancer in its last stages, and the people on the picket
line were attempting to talk to the employees =-- not the
employees who were actually on strike =-- they were trying to
talk the employees'out of the orchard where they were pruning,
were using bullhorns, and thus the injunction against the use
of bullhorns.

The United Farm Workers of Washington State wanted
to fight the injunction, and the head of the Evergreen Legal
Services farm worker division decided to assist the union. He
attempted to intervene on behalf of 25 farm workers whose
interest in the suit was suspect.

The only way that Evergreen could represent the
union was to have eligible clients involved in the suit. The
25 plaintiffs would probably not have joined the lawsuit if
ﬁhey had not been solicited by Evergreen to provide a cover
for challenging the injunction.

Depositions were scheduled by the employer’s

attorney. The Evergreen attorney refused to produce his
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clients. The Jjudge denied the motion to intervene. The
result was that the Evergreen Legal Services attorney was able
to assist the UFW for three months on government money, ewven
though he didn’t represent any clients who were party to the
lawsuit.

The Evergreen attorney did the thrée months of work
on the assunption that the intervention would ultimately be
granted.

Case No. 9: This was another case on which the
claim was settled without regard to the merit of the facts in
the case. Evergreen claimed the Fair Labor Standards Act and
Migrant Seasonal Worker Protection Act had been violated.

The plaintiffs claimed +that they had not been
informed of the extension ‘of harvest, while other employees
were ready and willing to testify that the plaintiffs were
fully knowledgeable of the expected term of employment. No
actual damages to the plaintiffs were claimed.

The employer settled for $6,000 because he thought
it would have cost over three times that amount to try the
case and prove his innocence.

Case No. 6, I helieve I omitted. It’s an unusual

case I believe I did. If I'm repeating myself, please correct
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me. It’s an unusual case in that the employer decided to
fight on the basis of principle and go all the way, believed
he was entirely innocent and tock it all the way, which is
very unusual.

The street language in Washington State is, you
know, these are all extortion lawsuits; it’s legal extortion.
You just pay up, because you feel like you have a gun to your
head. |

In this case, the employer did win the case, but he
spent over $30,000 in attorney’s fees to prove that the
Evergreen Legal Services case had nec merit. The judge found
that Evergreen had failed to prove that the plaintiffs were
damaged in any way at all, yet Evergreen dragged the employer
into a costly suit.

MR. DANA: Is that the DOL case?

MR. GEMPLER: No.

MR. DANA: Department of Labor Case?

MR. GEMPLER: No. That’s another case altogether.
That’s a recruitment case. A gentlemen claimed that he had
been promised a job when, in fact, he hadn’t been. There are
a couple of other cases that are in there that I’1l1 let you

read on your own.
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CHAIRMAN UDDO: Let me 3just ask a gquestion, Mr.

Gempler. The No. 2 case, I guess it is, the four letters in

here?

MR. GEMPLER: Yes.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: What was the final result of that
case?

MR. GEMPLER: O©Oh, it’s ongoing.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: 1It’s in litigation?

MR. GEMPLER: No. The last letter received from
Texas Rural Legal Aid was the letter demanding the $20,000 or
face the fact --

CHAIRMAN UDDO: All right. But the growers’
attorney responded to that, basically saying they weren’t
going to pay it, from what I read. Do you‘know what happened
aftef that?

MR. GEMPLER: No response yet.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Has a lawsuit been filed?

MR. GEMPLER: Not as far as I know. That 1is
ongaing. They’re kind of in the middle of that. What I‘d
like to do is talk a little bit about what I personally see
law being.

I spent a lot of +time in Olympia, Washington,
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lobbying on behalf of my members, and I know most of the
Evergreen Legal Service’s attorneys, end up serving on
advisory committees with them or going to public hearings with
them. I will eat lunch with them and discuss what we’re
working on, code revising, workshops.

fhey are regularly at the table. They are an
expected and regular part of that process on government meoney.
I see them having personal contacts with legislators,
participating in 1legislative committee hearings, regulatory
hearings, advisory committees, and work groups on proposed
regulations, among other things.

MR. WITTGRAF: Let me interrupt you just a moment,
Mr. Gempler. Is it your sense that they’re asked to do that
by legislators inveolved in the process --

MR. GEMPLER: O©Obviously, on an advisory --

MR. WITTGRAF: =-- establishing advisory committees?

MR. GEMPLER: Obviously then, yes, but otherwise,
no. They’ve been particularly inveolved recently in worker
exposure issues, pesticide exposure, which is a legitimate
concern of everybody, but they have heen very, very involved
in trying to shift the burden of responsibility or the

enforcement of pesticide redulations in our state from
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Department of Agriculture to Department of Labor and
Industries, and I have letters to that effect, and they lobby
very, very heavily in the background; they’re a big part of
it.
They also coordinate with a group called Centro

Campesino. It’s a farm worker advocacy group, United Farm

Workers of Washington state, particularly on the pesticide|
issues. }

The 1last thing I’d 1like to address 1is the
solicitation that I see, what I perceive to be solicitation.
I've seen Evergreen Legal Services attorneys personally
showing up at labor disturbances where the UFW again was
making a push a couple years ago to organize farm workers in
Washington state, and the Legal Services’ attorneys would show
up where the picket lines were and talk and hang out, and so
on.

The thing you need to understand is that they’re all
housed together kind of in a 1little compound. There’s
Evergreen Legal Services, United Farm Workers of Washington
State, and Centro Campesino. So physically, there is a very
close association. They often kind of share staff., When I

call one office, I get somebody who works for another office
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there, manning the phones; that kind of thing.

So they’re coordinating very, very closely together.
So it’s like one show. So when they show up at the picket
line, it’s not necessarily a surprise. They +talk about
settlements that have recently been made on a public Spanish
language radio station out of central Yakima Valley.

The messade, although they don‘t say these words,
the message is, "Come see us; we’ll get you money." That’s
the message. When a seasonal ag employee hears about the ten
guys who thought they were underpaid because the grower said
they only picked 20 bins when they thought they picked 25
bins, and end up with 15,000 apiece in their pockets because

of the damages allowed under MSWPA, that’s a pretty good

incentive to give it a try. So when they talk about those

cases over the radio, we believe that, to a certain extent,
that’s solicitation.

Last but not 1least, Evergreen Legal Services
attorneys have been accompanying field enforcement officers of
the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries
Employment Standards Division on their field investigations.
They ride with them in the cars when they’re going out to do

enforcement checks, enforcement audits, to see if people are
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paying the right wages, keeping hours, and so on.

I think that’s inéppropriate, and most likely, some
sort of solicitation is taking place. As I have said, you’ll
have letters from Mr. Boehm.

CHATIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Gempler. We’ll go to
Mr. Kirk for questicns. I have to run out and make a quick
phone call, Mr. Wittgraf, would you chair the meeting in my
absence?

MR. KIRK: I'1l just defer this time to Mr.
Wittgraf.

MR. WITTGRAF: Thank you, Mr. Kirk. Mr. Gempler, a
couple more questions. I haven’t seen the materials that you
brought, and I thank ycu on behalf of all of us for bringing
those materials. What time frame do those materials cover, do
you recall?

MR. GEMPLER: I believe the earliest case is
probably ‘86 or ‘87. Most of them are very recent. We run a
legal service through our association, keep an attorney on
retainer, in order to give employers accurate legal advice
whan they want to make an employment decision.

We also run seminars, legal seminars, on Migrant

Seasonal Work Protection Act and that kind of thing, do a lot
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of intensive grower education. So I'm very aware of what
cases are ongoing, MSWPA caées, for example, at all times.

So we have access to ongoing litigation, recent
litigation. S0 most of these are -- they may have been
started in ’86, but as you know, with litigation, it takes a
long time to resolve then. Most of these are ’88 or sincé
then.

MR. WITTGRAF: How many dgrower producer members are
there in the Washington Growers League, approximately?

MR. GEMPLER: At this time 550, and we are on a
pretty steady growth curve. We’re new, new kids on the block,
and it’s a new concept for people to belong to an organization
that’s organized around one issue such as this, which is just
labor and educating and representing them on labor issues.

MR. WITTGRAF: Any idea how many grower producers
there are in the sState of Washington?:

MR. GEMPLER: Labor intensive, people who meet
substantial payrolls. Let me run down the list here. There’s
about 4,500 tree fruit growers, actually about 5,000, when you
include all tree fruits; about 400 asparagus growers, about
100 hop growers, and the vegetable and berry people and the

dairy people. I mean, you’re probably adding another 5,000 to
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10,000 by the time you get all done. There are a lot of small
growers, smaller graowers.

MR. WITTGRAF: And of that some 15,000 to 20,000,
that’s the group that you’‘re soliciting the membership from,
the 550 and growing, and the interest that you represent cover
those different areas of agricultural production? '

MR. GEMPLER: Right.

MR. WITTGRAF: In your experience, and, obviously,
the legal part of it isn‘t just your responsibility, but for
purpcses of being with us today, you’ve focused on that; in
your experience or in the preparation you’ve made for visiting
with us this morning, have you come across any litigation
where anybody was invelved over Legal Services attorneys ever?

MR. GEMPLER: On the plaintiff’s side?

MR. WITTGRAF: On the plaintiff’s side, right.

MR. GEMPLER: It’s not always the plaintiff’s side
that’s a problem. Only in the case of the United Farm Workers
case that’s detailed there in which there was a pro bone

attorney for a period of time. They ended up =-- I bhelieve

they had expected payment from the UFW, and the UFW didn’t
have the money to do it, and they ate a lot of legal fees,

ended up being a pro bono case for them.
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That’s why I think there was a lot of motivation for
Evergreen to get involved, because this other attorney was
balking and said, "Hey, I can’t do this for free forever." So
Evergreen said, "Well, we’ll find a way to jump in and work on
this." That’s the only case.

As far as individual employers, which is, obviously,
the bulk of things, no. and I don’t want you to get the idea
that we’re still in a state where we have picket 1lines in
central Washington; we don’t. That was 1987, when they were
trying to make this organizing effort; they had marches; they
really weren’t strikes. They were demonstrations, and they go
outside of an orchard.

MR. WITTGRAF: A bit of a technical question. If it
goes beyond what you‘’ve had a chance to look at, just say so.
You’ve indicated, obviously, unhappiness on behalf your
organization and the members of the organization with the so-
called M"nuisance" cases or settlements that were cost of
defense settlements for a seemingly not existent or minor
violations of some law.

MR. GEMPLER: That’s right.

MR. WITTGRAF: I‘m wondering, in the cases that

you’ve cited, are those all of the ones that have been brought
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to your attention, on the one hand, and on the other hand, are
you aware of the defense lawyers, who are the defendants;
having ever filed any complaints with any authorities in the

State of Washington about unethical legal use of the process,

abuse of the process, any kind of unethical behavior by the
lawyers?

‘MR. GEMPLER: As far as I know, that hasn‘t been
done. I believe that, in a general sense, there have been?
complaints made to the Bar Association, particularly since
they give money to the interest on lawyer’s trust accounts and |
take a vote through the Washington State Bar Association to do!
that.

A lot of attorneys have complained and said, "Hey,
you guys need to know what’s going on, and don‘t make this a
guilt vote and just have somebody doing your pro bono work for
you here, because they’re not doing a good job."

I think the big problem is that -- you know, where
there’s smoke, there’s fire, usually, right? Somebody feels
that they’ve been wronged. You know, some ag employees feels
he’s been wronged. He has a problem; he wants to resclve it.
This isn’t the way to go about doing it. You don’t make a

demand for 162,000 bucks if the demand is $4,000, if that’s
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the extent of the damages.

So I’'m not sure, in all these cases, that the
employees’ interests are really being served, that there’s a
quick resolution_of the problem; people get paid what they’re
supposed to be getting paid, or that kind of thing.

When it comes to MSWPA cases, WwWhen there’s a
grotesque safety violation or something 1like that that
justifies punitive damages, that’s another thing, but we’re
not talking about that here, and I haven’t seen those cases.

We’re talking 'about where people perceive that they
have some money due them, and in order to resolve the case,
you have to go through the legal processes. Just with the
free attorney service, essentially, there’s very 1little
inceptive to pay attention to the merit of the case, and you
have to pay a lot of money, as an employver, to be involved,
and you just end up settling, because that’s really your only
choice. Nobody has the money to take it all the way through.

MR. WITTGRAF: Approximately how many seasonal or
migrant workers in the State of Washington per year?

MR. GEMPLER: 1It’s over 100,000. Through the State
of Washington Employment Security Department, over 100,000

individuals, the peak employment level is typically like 60 to
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70,000 a state. Around October 1st, peak of apple harvest, we
enploy about 43,000 people in the harvesting of apples. We’re
fourth in the natioﬁ in the number of seasonal agricultural
workers that we employ.

The number who are actually migrant is somewhere
around 50 percent of that total, and that number is beconming
less by the year.

MR. WITTGRAF: Thank you very much, Mr. Gempler.
Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Dana?

MR. DANA: Are you familiar with the
McCollum/Stenholm bhill?

MR. GEMPLER: Basically, yes. I’m not a technical
expert on any of these bills, but, basically, I‘m familiar
with the difference between the Frank Amendments and the
McCeollum/Stenholm Amendments.

MR. DANA: What particular sections of the McCollum
bill are of interest to you?

MR. GEMPLER: Well, I anticipated your question. I
was hoping you’d ask that.

MR. DANA: I’m glad I could oblige.

MR. GEMPLER: It seems as 1if the litigation
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safegquards; the plaintiffs to be identified and statement of
facts on file, that kind of thing, would go a 1long way,
hopefully, towards eliminating unmeritorious litigation.

Also, I really don’t know what the language is
regarding this, but limitation of class actions or at least
something that prevents the deposition process from being used
as a economic weapon. Also, the solicitation, obviously.
There’s another case I did not read to you.

Recently,?- this happened two weeks ago -- which a
group of Evergreen employees, I don’t know if any of them were
actually attorneys, they may have been paralegals, went to the
farm, a small apple farm of 33 acres -- this is not some big,
rich grower, now —-- up in north central Washington has three
houses that he let’s people live in.

So it wasn’t exactly a deep-«pocket situation there,
but_this grower had written a letter to a new government body
we have called the Pesticide Incident Review and Tracking
Panel that evéluates the adequacy of pesticide reentry
standards in our state; it’s a positive development for
everybody.

He didn’t agree with one of their decisions on a

particular chenmical. He said this reentry period was too
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long. Evergreen, as I told you previously, has been
intimately involved in this process and has been lobbying for
at least three years on the worker protection standards.

They were at that PIRT board hearing, where his
letter was read, and I think it’s very coincidental that they
went out to his ranch and nobody else’s in that relatively
isolated part of Washington State with video cameras to his
three houses for employee housing and Knocked on the doors and
said, "Hi, we’re from Evergreen Legal Services. Can we come
in and take pictures of your house?"

Now, there you are, these gquys ~-- I don‘t know if
his employees were -- well, they weren’t local people because
they were living in employee housing. They may have been from
Mexico; they may have been from California. They were
Hispanic. From what I understand from the employer, they had
limited English skills.

I’'m not sure these Evergreen enmployees spoke
Spanish, perhaps they did, but the message I’m getting is that
they did not go up and say, "Hi, we’re from Evergreen Legal
Services. We’d like to talk to you about conditions on your
farm, and you don’t have to let us in." I mean, it’s almost

like misrepresentation as government employees, like flashing
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your badge. "We’re from Evergreen Legal."

And these guys are saying, "Hey, fine. We don’t
want any trouble. Come on in."™ So they went in with video
cameras. The employer comes out and says, "Hey, what’s going
on?" He knows that they have a right to be there. I mean,
that’s private housing; that’s private property at that point,
but he wanted to know what was going on, felt his employees
were being harassed.

The Evergreen employees were taking video pictures
of the employer, asking them what was going on, and he said,
"Stop the. camera. I don’t want to be filmed." They pointed
the camera away, kept the sound on, then brought the camera
back up on him, snuck arcund behind him, there were four of
them, and filmed, and he had to ask them again; this kind of
harassment.

He said, "Fine. I'm going in, and I’‘m calling my
attorney to find out what my rights are here," and he went in
to call his attorney, and in the meantime, they left.

So that’s the kind of thing that happens. I mean,
it smacks of solicitation, that they’re going out -- first of
all, there was a coincidence with the letter that this farmer

wrote. I mean, he has a right to be part of thé process and
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express an opinion. I mean, it was just a letter to discover,
public government body, about what he thought about their
decision. And secondly, these people went out, I believe,
looking for business.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Have you or any of the growers ever
thought of reporting any attorneys te the Bar Association for
conduct that might be wviolative of the Rules of Professional
Conduct?

MR. GEMPLER: Actually, I never really have thought
about doing that. Qur attorneys, I would assume, if they
thought that was a reasonable course of action or an effective
course of action, would have suggested it. Maybe their
politically naive. I don’t know. Maybe it would be good to
get -that on the record. Perhaps we should start doing that.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Well, most states have a separate
disciplinary system separate from -just the Bar Asscociation
itself, and the disciplinary system sometimes is the place
where some of those things could be worked out or conduct
could be penalized. Do we have a copy of your list of cases?

MR. GEMPLER: Yes.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: OCkay, Mr. Gempler. Thank you very

much.,

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 628-2121




S T

(4]

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

63

MR. KIRK: Could I ask one more question?

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Yes, sure,

MR. KIRK: Mr. Gempler, is the fact that the Legal
Services cOrpofation as a threat, not only of causing legal
fees, but being able to cover legal fees, a tool that works as
settlement or convinces you to want to settle?

MR. GEMPLER: O©Oh, absolutely, and I'm sorry I didn’t
include that in the wish list you gave me an opportunity to
give you, but yeah, absolutely. In fact, there was one
particular case in which the amount of attorney’s fees
demanded were incredibly high, particularly in relation to the
amount of damages, and the Evergreen attorney did ask that the
grower pay those attorney’s fees.

So yes, it can add substantially. You're talking
tens of thousands of dollars, and when.it's already paid by
the government, it seems a little unfair.

MR. KIRK: With regard to the reporting to the Bar
Association, one person related to me that the same lawyers
are always out there, and the same growers are always there,
kind of 1like, you khow, the policeman, and if you start
reporting the policeman for bad conduct, he’s always going to

be there, his buddies are going to be there, and there’s
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unfair reprisal. Have you felt any fear of reprisal, or do
growers feel fear of reprisal.

MR. GEMPLER: There’s fear of reprisal. I‘m not
convinced that it’s happening in our state. As I’ve already
stated, there was a coincidence with this gquy writing the
letter. Also, the interstate clearance order, I believe, was
definitely targeted by Evergreen Legal, that particular case,
because the union and Evergreen Legal did neot want to see that
gsystem succeed, because it brings in employees from out of
state, and it supposedly swells the labor force and drives
wages down, right? That’s the old argument, which it dces not
do. In fact, they were paying as high or higher.

But in any case, they targetad that, but I have no
examples of them going back against somebody who has made a
complaint to date. I wouldn’t be surprised if it happened,
but by and large, after developing some kind of a relationship
with some of these attorneys, working for the past four years
on various advisory committees and so on, I don’t think that
would be a big problem, but, again, it really wouldn’t
surprise me. |

MR. KIRK: All right. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Gempler. Mr. Andrew
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Cowin from the Heritage Foundation. Welcome, Mr. Cowin.
PRESENTATION OF ANDREW COWIN
HERITAGE'FOUNDATION

ANDREW COWIN: My name is Andrew Cowin, research
associate with the Heritage Foundation, which is a public
policy researéh organization in Washington, D.C. I just want
to go over some of the more general aspects of the legislation
in Legal Services, and what I see is really unquestionable
reforms that could be made in legal services.

About two years ago, I became interested in Legal
Services Corporation. At that time, a bill introduced by
Congressmen McCollum and Stenholm was a focus of disagreements
between conservatives and liberals. Opponents, and I
particularly remember Barney Frank, claimed that supporters of
McCollun/Stenholm couldn’t care less about reform, but were
interested in crushing the Legal Services Corporation because
they saw it pursuing a left wing agenda.

I supported McCollum/Stenholm, but nevertheless
tried to objectively assess the charge made by Congressman
Frank. After <considering the various issues and
controversies, I decided they could be divided into three

categories: ocne 1is ideoclogical; two, economic; and three,
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real unquestionable reform.

I place abortion in the ideological category. Had
Legal Services been funding the pro-life Operation Rescue
legal effort instead of the Pro-Choice Planned Parenthood
court cases,'there would have been an uproar from the left,
which is equally justified as the current uproar on the right.

As for the second category, economics, that was
where I classified the farmer/farm worker disputes. Both
sides have legitimate grievances to which hopefully you will
find an equitable solution.

The last category, real unquesticnable reform,
included four itenms: effective penalties against waste,
fraud, and abuse; competition for services; effective
monitoring of attorney gquality; and time-keeping for
attorneys. It’s this last category, real unquesticnable
reform, that I wish to address.

These four reforms encompass the necessities of any
government program in a modexrn democrat nation; that is,
accountability of the workers to their emplover, in this case
the government, and accountability of the government to its
employer, the people. The fact that these safeguards have yet

to be established should be an embarrassment.
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Today, as we look around the world, this type of
lack of accountability is increasingly isclated to third world
dictatorships and communist governments.

One other thing I want to discuss that goes along
with accountability and I feel 1is also missing from legal
services, is openness; that is, the power of the taxpayer to
k¥now how their money is being spent.

I want to talk generally about our system, and in
America, the people have a right to know what their government
is up to. Once the people find out, they can hold their
representatives accountable. That’s why we have the Freedom
of Information Act, public hearings, and the Government
Printing Office.

That’s what the constitution ié based on; that’s why
we hold elections. Legal Serviceé falls ocutside this
tradition. In many respects, the grantees operate in secret,
even from their own government, and without fear of
punishment. Therefore, they cannot be held accountable for
their actions by the government or the people the government
represents.

Even the Central Intelligence Agency has more

restraints on it than a Legal Services grantee. This is a
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major concern. Accountability in govermment is truly a
cornerstone of democracy. The United States government,
unlike Zaire’s, for example, cannot simply spend money on
whatever it pleases and tell the c¢itizens to mind their own
business.
For democracy to work properly, citizens need to

know how government spends their money, and if they don‘t like

it, they should be able to do socmething about it, but this is |

not the case with Legal Services.

When illegal activity is discovered, such as the
grantee director, who spent $31,000 of LSC money teo finance
his MBA, it is often by a chance tip from a disgruntled
employee. Furthermore, the sanctions are extremely limited.
Prosecuting a person who robbed the government is difficult.

Even the 'most readily available remedy to cut
funding of the grantee by an amount equal to what the was
stolen or used for illegal purposes requires lengthy
procedures which discourage their use.

In the two years since I first became interested in
Legal Services Corﬁoration, the Berlin Wall has been
dismantled, and Checkpoint Charlie, where Soviet and American

spies were exchanged, has been moved to a museum.
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East Germany has been absorbed into West, and
Czachoslovakia, Poland, and Russia are actively trying to
reform their governments. But at Legal Services, the grantees
remain virtually unaccountable to the people.

Nevertheless, I am heartened to see that Barney
Frank and others, who have opposed reform in the past, have
finally agreed in principal that the Waste Fraud and Abuse
statutes should apply to Legal Services. This is progress.

However, you must ensure that the changes are real
and enforceable. Those proposed by Congressman Frank, with
all their restrictions on enforcement of the law, seemed aimed
more at protecting a guilty grantee than in safeguarding money
meant for the pobr.

While failure to effectively enforce laws against
waste, fraud, and abuse is a most egregious fajlure, other
lapses need correcting. For one thing, it is very difficulty
to know exactly what it is that Legal Services grantees do
with the money they receive.

Too many barriers stand in the way of effective
monitoring. Thus, while we finally have agreement on waste,
fraud, and abuse, we have yet to find such agreement on

guaranteeing that the services the poor receive are the best
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available.

In last year’s congressional debate, Congressman
Frank stated "He believes Legal Services does a good job," but
he can only hold a belief because he cannot possibly know what
kind of job Legal Services does. That information is not
available.

During the same debate, Congressman Stenholm stated
that Legal Services grantees do not have to keep any records
of how they are spending federal funds. Although monitors can
be sent to grantees and ask gquestions, no criminal law
prohibits the grantees from lying to the monitors.

Furthermore, attorneys are not required to maintain
time-keeping records, and as much as payments to lawyers form
the bulk of Legal Services expenses, and the lack of time-
keeping records makes it impossible to know what the attorneys
are doing, Legal Services cannot know if the bulk of its money
is well spent. 1Indeed, it cannot know if the money is even
being spent legally.

A simple gquestion like what percentage of a
grantee’s budget is spent on divorce cases, and what percent,
if any, 1is spent on illegal activities cannot be answered.

Another issue that must be addressed is the quality of service
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offered by Legal Servicaes attorneys.

I mentioned earlier the lack of accountability and
how foreign that is to our political system, but another thing
that is foreign is lack of competition. The same grantees
that receive funding at the start of LSC still receive it, not
because they deliver the best service, but simply because they
were first.

Once again, this is an area where Legal Services has
more in common with third world dictatorships and communist
governments than with the American tradition of free
enterprise and competition. LSC came to mind last week when
the Heritage Foundation hosted a delegation from the Russian
republic.

These were followers of Boris Yeltzen who wanted
help in instituting capitalism in Russia. We took them on a
tour of a modern factory in Baltimore, and they were
astonished that only six people ran the factory; whereas, in
Russia they said at least 400 would be used.

They were told that the factory had to be run
efficiently, otherwise, it would go out of business. They
didn’t understand the concept of going out of business. They

said, "Never in Russia’s history had a government company gone
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out of business." In fact, every company formed in 1917, the
year of the Russian Revolution, is still around today.

Legal Services Corporation runs its grantee progranm
the same way the Russians run their companies, no competition,
and the grantees seem to think they have the right to eternal
funding. There’s no excuse for this. America has 750,000
lawyers.

I used to work in a big Wall Street law firm, and I
can tell you there are numberless young attorneys who would
take a big cut in salary to do something rewarding like
represent the poor and divorced, landlord/tenant, wills, and
bankruptcy proceedings.

There’s so many gualified people available to bid
their services, LSC should stop sending money to the grantees
simply because they happened to be there in the beginning. I
have four easy steps you can take to make things better: one,
institute time-keeping for attorneys. The biggest expense for
Legal Services grantees 1s lawyers’ salaries.

There can be no way of knowing whether a particular
grantee uses taxpayers money effectively without knowing how
much time lawyers spend on cases. BAdditionally, due to the

controversy surrcunding so many Legal Services grantees and
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the proven charges that work has been done on areas prohibited
by law, it’s even more important to Keep accurate records.

Objections by Legal Services attorneys to this
requirement are ludicrous. They begin to sound like gangsters
in court who continually invoke the Fifth Amendment to avoid
incriminating themselves.

Number two, allow competition for Legal Services
grant money. The current method of handing out LSC money
needs to change. Like the monarchy system of government,
where power is handed down based on inheritance rather than on
merit or ability, grantees receive funds simply because they
have always received funds.

The current system is particularly archaic because
of the lawyer glut in America. The government receives
competitive bids on almost everything, including paper clip's.,
erasers and pencils. Legal Services supporters often state
how important it is to defend the rights of the poor.

If they believe that the legal rights of the poor
are as important as decent paper clips at the Pentagon, Legal
Services should protect those rights through competition to
see who can deliver the best, most efficient service.

Number three, hold attorneys, not the programs they
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work for, responsible for waste, fraud, and abuse. The
current system is misdirected because it effectively holds the
program, rather than the attorney who works for the program,
responsible for legal violations.

As has often been pointed out, this punishes <the
poor for the crimes of their lawyers. The provisions in HR
1345, which would apply a variety of federal laws to Legal
Services’ attorneys makes sense. This would not only place
enforcement where it belongs, on the wrongdoer, but would also
enhance monitoring by applying to the attorneys federal laws
against false claims and statements.

And No. 4, improve monitoring of the grantees.
Improved monitoring should be two goals: one, to ensure that
no laws are being violated; and two, to determine the quality
of service provided by grantees.

Reform of the time-keeping rules, application of the
Federal False Claims Act, will go a long way toward realizing
these goals. One further reform would be to allow monitors to
receive from grantees the names of clients that are a matter
of public record. This will let monitors contact the clients
and determine whether they are satisfied with the service they

received at LsQ.
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In combination, these three monitoring reforms will
let Legal Services Corporation set a standard by which to
judge recipients when receiving competitive bids for Legal
Service grants. Accurate information as to how money is
spent, what lawyers do with their time, and whethexr their
clients are satisfied will allow the grantors to decide who
can best handle the most landlord/tenant or Social Security or
bankruptcy cases.

It will provide a rational benchmark against which
to judge programs so that grants are made based on objective
criteria. Those are my. four points. I don‘t see any
legitima_te reason to oppose these reforms. They would make
Legal Services open and accountable to the people, which is
the way it should be in a democracy, and they would improve
the services delivered to the poor.

These reforms have nothing to do with ideclogy and
everything to do with good government. That’s my statement.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Cowin. Mr. Kirk?
Well, I tell you what, how about I start from this side this
time, just to kind of give everyone =-- oh, you have something?

Mr. Dana?
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MR. XIRK: I appreciate that, because when I sat on
that side, you always started with me, and now that you’ve sat
me on this side -~

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Since you’re moving to the left, I
thought you would --

MR. KIRK: It depends on where you’re sitting out
there. '

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Dana?

MR. DANA: Mr. Cowin, in your comments, on two or
three occasions, you talked about improving the quality of
service that our grantees lawyers provide, and you mentioned
tine-keeping as a way of ensuring quality of service.

I confess, I'm not sure what the relationship is
between time-keeping and the quality of service. I think
there may be a relationship between the efficiency and the
cost effectiveness, and I welcome your response to that, but I
also would like you to list any other reforms that you think
the corporation and/or Congress should do to ensure increased
quality of service, as distinguished from efficiency or cost
effectiveness.

MR. COWIN: Well, I think that, on time~keeping, as

far as quality is concerned, it seems to me that it’s just one
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indication of how well a lawyer operates. I imagine that most
of the cases that come to Legal Services are fairly sinple
matters of Jjust people with standard problems with their
checks or bankruptcy or, as I say, wills, divorce, whatever it
is; and one person who handles that in five days doesn’t know
what he’s doing, probably.

If it’s on a simple question, and somebody handles
it in an hour probably does have some idea of what they’re
doing, and it’s not the only indication, but it’s certainly
one way, one piece of information "that would help vyou
determine whether these attorneys are doing a good job or not.

On the quality, it seems to ne the most important
thing to know is what the clients feel the quality of their
service has been, not that they would necessarily -- they
probably don’t have a lot of experience in legal service, but
it would be nice at least to talk to these people and get some
feeling from them of how they were treated, of what their
problem was, and whether it was handled properly.

I think that will be the most important reform,
would be to be able to talk to the clients about the kind of
service they’re receiving.

MR. DANA: COkay.
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CHATRMAN UDDC: Mr. Wittgraf?

MR. WITTGRAF: Thank you, Mr. Uddo. Mr. Cowin, you
indicated, as you began your comments, that you’ve had an
opportunity over the last two years, I think you said, to
spend some time studying legal services or Legal Services
Corporation. You don’t mean on a full-time basis, do you?
You

MR. COWIN: No, I don’t.

MR. WITTGRAF: Have you had a chance to spend any
time in the field, so to speak, with any Legal Services
attorneys?

MR. COWIN: ©No. All I really Xnow -- what I XkXnow

about it is what I’ve read about it, and I’m alsc a lawyer,

.and I‘ve had some experience in the law and have been able to

judge some of what I’ve read against that, but I’ve read,
well, an awful lot of publications from Legal Services, talked
to a lot of people who have worked at Legal Services. I
followed the debate in Congress.

MR. WITTGRAF: On the one hand, I agree with you
about the value of competition, and that’s something with
which, I guess our board, much like the Congress, has bheen

concerned in trying to figure out how that can be implemented
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in an instrumental, valuable way.

But go back one step. As you talk about time-
keeping, competition, c¢riminal sanctions, applying the
individual attorneys, as you talk about monitoring, have you
found in your reading any particular problems that need to be
addressed?

I think the reform concepts you’ve talked about have
been philosophical, and I don’t find necessarily that I |
disagree with you philosophically. I’m wondering, though, if
there is some specific concerns that you have that you might
share with us as to inadequacies or shortcomings or problems?

MR. COWIN: I think the problem is that you don’/t
know what the shortcomings are, because you don’t have these
reforms. If you don‘t have a good way of getting information;
you don’t know what the problem is. That’s why we have these
kind of reforms. I come from New York City, and when I was
growing up we studied Taminy Hall, and they would do the same
kind of thing.

They would put their friends on the payroll and have
absolutely no oversight, énd we used to say, "Well, what’s
wrong with this?" Well, you don’t know what’s wrong with it,

because there’s no oversight.
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MR. WITTGRAF: Again, I understand what you’re
saying, in sort of philosophical or conceptual terms. Mr,
Gempler, for whose testimony you were present, I believe, came
with some very specific concerns, obviously, in what you
characterized as the economic area.

You’re talking about the accountability area or the
reform area. I don’t think it’s impossible to be aware of
praoblems if +they exist, so I’ll ask you again, perhaps
rhetorically this time, are you aware of anything? Is there
anything in particular that we need to be concerned with, in
terms of quality or in terms of inefficiency?

MR. COWIN: You’re asking if I Xnow of any cases
where a Legal Service attorney spent too long on a welfare
casa, for example?

MR. WITTGRAF: That would be one way to answer the
guestion, but --

MR. COWIN: I haven’t been out there, as I said,
investigating Legal Services, but +the reason that the
government has these kinds of programs for oversight is so
that we can find out whether or not these problems exist.
Nobody really knows.

MR. WITTGRAF: You‘ve read, I assume, the bulk of
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the Legal Services Corporation’s employees out of Washington
are part of the Office of Monitoring Audit and Compliance,
have you not?

MR. COwIN: No, I haven’t.

MR. WITTGRAF: Okay. And their responsibility is to
provide the very kind of oversight that you’re talking about.

MR. COWIN: But, on the other hand, as I think I
mentioned, there are things like -- and I think even Barney
Frank, who originally opposed applying the Federal False
Claims Act and thé other acts that would not provide criminal
sanctions against people misleading the monitors, there are no
sanctions. There are no effecti§e sanctions against the
people, the lawyers, who are working for Legal Services.

So I don’t know exactly what the monitors can find
out. As I understand it, what the monitors can discover is
limited, As Charlie Stenholm said, there’s no law that
requires the attorneys to tell the monitors the truth, to
actually account for the federal funds that they’re receiving.

You can have hundreds of monitors. You could have
-~ everybody at Legal Services could be a monitor, but unless
there’s something effective the monitors can do, they’re not

worth as much as they could be. The point would be to change
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the laws so that the monitors can do their job better.

One of the ways they could do their job better would
be if they could talk to the clients. As I understand it,
they cannot easily get a list of the clients from the Legal
Service grantees.

Now, it seems to me that if you’re rich and you want
a lawyer, then you have a choice, you have a choice of what

law firm to go to. But these people are poor; they don’t have

the choice, and Legal Services Corporation, you would think,
would take the time to find out if the service that’s being |
delivered by the grantees are any goed. |

The way to do that, and what the monitors could be
doing, it seems to me, is to get a list of the clients and go
out there and find out what happened. It would be nice if
there were monitors who had some experience and background in
handling poverty cases so they would know whether or nct the
grantees were actually doing a good job.

MR. WITTGRAF: Would you be surprised if I told you
that that’s done already, both by the grantees and by the
monitors.

MR. COWIN: I would be surprised, because, as I

understand it, there is no requirement to turn over the list
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of clients, even to publicly, the public, the list, the names
that are made of public record to the monitors.

MR. WITTGRAF: One final gquestion. You made a
comment earlier in your remarks, and I think in reference to
time-keeping, as you were talking about that reform, a
reference to the controversy surrounding so many grantees.
Could you elaborate on that a little bit what you had in mind?

MR. COWIN: Sure. I didn’t bring the litany of
cases with me, because I assume that you’re familiar with it,
but, you know, the lesbian sheriff with AIDS. I understand
there was a case where one of the Texas grantees brought suit
for —- a class action suit for a lesbian sheriff with AIDS and
all similarly situated people, and the Nicaraguan peace convoy
case, some of the preparation of Planned Parenthood.

As I say, I didn’t -- there’s a whole litany of
cases, which I assumed that you know, and I didn’t bring with
me.

MR. WITTGRAF: I guess, as we look at 324, 325
grantees, and at least as I visited a few in the Midwest, I
haven’t found much controversy surrounding those grantees that

I’'ve he had a c¢hance to get to know --

MR. COWIN: Can I ask you, though -- I mean, you are
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aware that there is some controversy surrocunding some of the
grantees?

- MR. - WITTGRAF: Certainly. Texas Rural Legal
Assistance has involved itself in some things <that are
controversial. <cCalifornia Rural Legal Assistance has involved
itself in some things that are controversial, but much as Mr.
Gempler and I didn‘t have this cellogquy, but I guess, when we
assume that adverse economic interests are concerned that’s
necessarily controversial.

When one of those adverse interests is being
represented by a federally funded attorney, that’s going to
make some people why are my federal tax dollars being used for
that. So certainly there is controversy, but I take some
exception, I guess, to your comment that it surrounds so many
grantees.

In fact, in my experience thus far, which isn’t as
long as your two years of experience, mine’s only about 15 or
16 months, but I haven’t found controversy surrounding many
grantees. I was just surprised, and that’s why I asked you
question.

MR. COWIN: Well, I guess it’s a question of what so

many -- I guess even when Mr. Davidson was here, you didn’t
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think 10 percent was a great number, but he thought that 10
percent was a large number.

As I say, it just seems to me that peoplé really are
upset with Legai Services Corporation. There are people out
there who are saying, same individuals who don‘t necéssarily
do and chase at windmills and get upset wvery easily, who
really feel that the Legal Services’ grantees are taking on
ideological cases.

As I say, there’s a whole litany of cases, which I’m

sure you’re aware of, and I know you are and don’t need to go

'through them, but it just seems that these people are not

insane, that really it’s something that should be looked at.

You have 199 congressmen who voted in favor of
McCollum/Stenholm to make some pretty serious reforms of the
Legal Services Corporation, and those people aren’t crazy
either.

There really is a problem, and to say that, well,
you know, there really isn‘t a problem, it’s not many, many
grantees, there’s only grantees is not really -- you know, it
may be even factually correct but doesn’t go to what is
disturbing people, and I really think you have to show some

concern for that.
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MR. WITTGRAF: Thank you, Mr. Uddo.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Kirk.

MR. WITTGRAF: Thank you, Mr. Coﬁin.

MR. KIRK: Just a couple of comments, Mr. Cowin, on
competition. I think that you’re going to find that the whole
legal system or all of us lawyers have, for years, felt that
the rendering of legal services, in whatever form, did not
lend itself well to competition, and we’ve gone through
studies, and there’s been the San Diego study, and the San
Antonio studies and what have you.

But more recently, private enterprise, corporate
America, capitalism, has found out about competition among
lawyers, and what we on this committee don’t know I’1ll assure
you is happening in the market place out there.

If you read the recent American Lawyer of how EDS is
handling their legal services, there’s a compendium of
comments by general counsel of the large corporations of
Anerica; lawyers are now going to have to work on competition,
and I think that the lack of basis that we have had for
instilling competition or installing competition within the
Legal Services Corporation is probably going to fall by

wayside, because I think that out there now are some really

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 628-2121




10

11

12

13

14 -

15
16
17
i8
19
20
21

22

87
good models for us to follow.
And I‘1l tell you what, my law firm now is competing
for legal services, and my biggest client sent a letter and
says, "Hey, you’re competing with other firms. We’re going to

see what yoﬁ do, how you do it, what services you render, and

what the cost is."

So I think that you’re going *to see a lot of
progress in the next year or two, because we’ve got some
models to follow, but I appreciate your comments, and I wanted
to share that with you.

MR. COWIN: Well, that’s a terrific development, and
I look fc;rward to that happening, as well as -- and I think

now there’s some agreement on applying the Waste Fraud and

‘Abuse -statutes to Leégal Services, so that’s progress.

CHATRMAN UDDO: Mr. Dana informs me he has one more
question.

MR. COWIN: Yes.

MR. DANA: Many people are concerned about
competition or the competition propesal in this legislation
because they see it as a centralization of power in the
corporation that we’re directors of. A Washington

bureaucracy, which is already not insubstantial, would grow
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with substantial additional ' responsikilities, because, as
envisioned, they would ultimately decide whether this law firm
or that law firm received a feﬁeral contract.

I am surprised, [frankly, that the Heritage
Foundation would be pushing a}proposal to expand a Washington
bureaucracy to solve a problem that historically -- to sélve
this problem through more inﬁrusive control from inside the
Beltway. |

Mr. Kirk and I are in firms that compete with other
firms, and the ultimate decision-maker is the client, whether
they be big clients or little clients. They’re all ocut there
competé; they have multiple chdices.

What the propeonents bf competition, and many of the
propenents of competition who have spoken to us today are
espousing are competition every year or every two or three
careers to move from one monopoly to the next. They aren‘t
talking about competition in tﬂe sense that billable attorneys
that -- where you were, when you were in a Wall Street law
firm, you were filling out time sheets and competing for
business.

You weren’t necessarﬁly, and I’ve admired many of

the positions of the Heritage Eoundation. I thought I could
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get where they would be. I find the notion that they are
espousing, the centralization of Legal Services in a
Washington bﬁreaucracy that would control through 1levels of
contract -=- I mean, it is the prototype of the centralization
of a Russian communist regime that you were talking about
earlier.

MR. COWIN: Not really, because the Russian
communist regime, there is only one contractor, there is only
one perscn that gets the contract, and that’s the government.

MR. DANA: I understood you to say that every single
busiﬁess that was formed in Russia in 1917 is still operating
today --

MR. COWIN: Exactly.

MR. DANA: -- because the government funds them.

MR. COWIN: Well, that’s right.

MR. DANA: And one of our problems,_I think, with
Russia 1is that they don’t understand the notion of
competition.

MR. COWIN: Right. Can I just give you an example?
I have no problem with a firm getting a contract for a full
year, being the only firm to handle it for that year, and this

is standard, I think, in government'contracts.
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I'll give you an éxample; In Pheenix, they're
trying to privatize the garbage service and they let out
contracts. They had competition between private contractors
and the public sanitation départment that was picking up
garbage in Phoenix, and they had to compete to see who would
pick up the most garbage.

The government wound up == they divided up the city
into sections, and the government granted the contracts
depending on who gave the best bid and promised the best
service for each section, and 1l.;‘,hcazy did it for a year. I don’t
have any problem with that.

I don’t see why that’s difficult, what’s wrong with
the competition, and then this company wins in that section
for this year, and if somebody else gives a better bid the
next year, then they can win in that section.

Also, there’s a bhetter example, really, of Legal
Services in New York, which I'm sure you’re aware of, the
Legal Aid Society, I think J.t was Bob Abrahms office, the
attorney general up there, dec;iided that "We’re not going to
keep legal aid on this contract. We’re going to put out bids
and have the best person handle the legal needs of the poor,"

and the Legal Aid Society was just up in arms.
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"This is horrible. They’re asking us to actually
contain costs and do things." Well, I think Legal Aid wound
up getting that contract, retaining the contract, but now the
state and the poor people have a much better deal. I don‘t
see how that is similar to the Russian system at all where
there’s really no accounﬁability, where just people go out and
do whatever they want and cohtinue to get funded, and no
matter how many mistakes they make, it doesn’t matter, and how
bad the service is, it deoesn’t matter.

No, it’s not an ideal situation to have the
government handing out{ a Dbig bureaucracy in Washington
handing out money, even based on competition. I agree with
you on that, but it’s not an ideal world either, and I think
this is far better than what you have today.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Cowin, just on that last point,
in Chicago we testimony from Professor Cox, Steven Cox, who
conducted a study on competition for the corporation sometime
ago. If you’ve been doing reading about Legal Services, you
may have run across his name in his study.

He told us pretty much the exact opposite of what
you just said, and that is, the worst thing_we could do would

be to implement competition where you go from one monepoly to
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another; that the only kind of competition that’s going to
really improve Legal Services delivery to poor folks is
constant competition where the! consumer has some choice.

So I think that sort of highlights the problem that
this committee has and the board has that there are very
reputable propcnents 6f a variety of positions on competition
that are contradictory to someé extent, and I think that it’s
an experiment right now at best.

The problem that we have is to try to figure out
what makes sense to propose as a course that the corporation
might take and implement competition.

MR. COWIN: Well, I don’t know why you can’t do both
and figure out which is -- I mean, I take it that Professor
Cox thinks the system now needs to be changed.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: He'séa proponent of competition, but
not the kind you’re talking about.

MR. COWIN: Well, what he wants to do is he wants
the individual poor people to go to one of 10 or 20 or 30.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: To have choices, right.

MR. COWIN: Like having a woucher system, something
like that? Is that what you’re talking about? That sounds

good, too. I mean, I think t?hat’s greaﬁ also, but I don‘t
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have any particular problem with that.

My point is that you need some form of competition
and not having =-- really, I didn’t actually get to thinking
through the voucher concept. I just wanted to take it -- I
mean, Jjust one step better would be to have some form of
competition in competitive bidding, it seems to me, and the
voucher concept might even work even better than that, but
some form of competition would be nice, and in fact is really
necessary, and I hope that you institute it. I don’t know why
you couldn’t do one form in one place and one form in another
place and determine which one is better.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I don’‘t think anybody’s saying we

can‘t. The question is, I don’t think anyone has thought it a

through encugh to know how to do it, where to do it, and under

what the circumstances to do it.

MR. COWIN: But anything’s better than this systen
now, right?

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Well, the endorsement of the idea of
competition is only the first step. I mean, I think there’s a
lot more to it, and I think it’s being discussed in somewhat
simplistic terms, that need to implement competition, but

that’s only the first most minimal step, because then, when we
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start asking questions about how to implement it, there are an
awful lot of very, as I say, répectable views on what might be
an effective way to do it and| what might be a disastrous way
to do it. |

.MR. COWIN: Yeah, b@t now you’ve got two possible
models, and you could do either one. |

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I idon’t know if it’s even that
simple, because I think that t@e delivery of legal services is
complex. I mean, some things may work in some areas and not
in others, and I don’t thin]{ we’re sure which one. Some
things may work in rural areas that won’t work in urban areas.
Urban areas tend to have far m&re providers to start with that
you could work into a competitﬂve system.

My only point is that this committee has endorsed
the idea of competition, and;I’m sure the board will, but
we’re being urged to do more than that. And I think that it’s
difficult to do more when no onﬁ is really quite sure what the
more is and what will work and what wen’t.

MR. COWIN: Well, let?me make one final point, which
is that you’ve got abéolutely hothing to lose by instituting
the monitoring reforms and the time-keeping reforms. And that

way, you’ll have some benchmari'k, some objective criteria by
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which to judge the programs. And then you can have people--

even that the simplest thing would be to have people come in

and give competitive and you keep them there for a year.

And if they promised you to deliver certain services
and they don’t do it, then you can do something about that;
you can take action against them. But to leave the system the
way it is now is a disaster. I think the-first step has got
to be some form of competiﬁive bidding. And you’ve got the
ways, the time-keeping, the monitoring to measure the
performance of your attorneys, and you really should institute
that.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you Mr. Cowin.

MR. COWIN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I want to welcome Ms. Wolbeck who
joined us during this testimony. I’m glad you could make it.

Mr. Scully, John Scully, from the Washington Legal
Foundation?

PRESENTATION OF.JOHN SCULLY

MR. SCULLY: Thank you. My name is John Scully, and
I'm an attorney with the Wéshington Legal Foundation. I want
to thank you for allowing me to testify here today.

The Washington Legal Foundation is a nonprofit law
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and policy center with over 120,000 members and supporters
nationwide. We’re involved :.nl a wide range of litigation and
a wide range of administrative rulemaking procedures. We also
have been involved in a lot of First Amendment issues, and
have filed a 1lot of Amicus briefs, particularly in First
Amendment area. :

Let me first give a disclaimer here. The washington
Legal Foundation does not endorse, support, or oppose any
legislative proposal. We§ just merely want to speak
specifically on one aspect of| Legal Services that it is of
great concarn to our members ahd supporters, and that we hope
this committee will address, and that is the First Amendment
implications of interest on lawyer trust accounts, IOLTAS.

I think this is an issue that, no matter where
members of the board might! split on it, political or
ideclogical spectrum, no matteﬁ whether someocne is a supporter
of Legal Services or thinks it should be totally defunded, is
something that should be of fconcern to all americans who
treasure civil liberty. |

In late April, the Wa?shington Legal Foundation filed
a lawsuit challenging the constfitutionality of the Interest on

Lawyér Trust Account program in Massachusetts. I'm sure you
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all are aware of how IOLTAs operate. They vary somewhat in
the 49 states where they’re in existence and the District of
Columbia, but essentially what they do is they take the
interest from a client’s money and turn that money over to an
organization which then later disburses the funds.

A large bulk of those funds currently go to Legal
Services dgrantees. The Washington Legal Foundation is, of
course, concerned about how all of that IOLTA money is used.
However, we are addressing specifically our concerns as when
Legal Services grantees accept IOLTA money and how that money
is used.

Litigation is, of course, a constitutional right--
not the subsidization of litigation, but the right to go into
court, the right to use the Admini;trative Rule, the right to
go into court. When an individual goes into court and, as a
condition of going into court or as a condition of hiring the
lawyer or perhaps as having just been trapped in the legal
system by becoming involved as a defendant in a suit or being
involved in a car accident, and he finds that he is being
compelled to subsidize a political or ideoclogical cause as a
condition of using the legal process, his First Amendment

rights are implicated.
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How does this happen through IOLTA? Well, once the
funds go from the individuélitrust account into the bigger
pool that is then dished out, fthe various recipients can then
decide how to use that money. In some states, there are
limitations on how that IOLTA funds are used. In other states
there are no or virtually no limitations.

In many instances, whan Legal Services grantees are
recipients of IOLTA funds, as 'in Massachusetts for instance,
the Legal Services grantees use their funds +¢o engage in
litigation or legislative lobbying activities that they would
be prohibited from using federai funds for. So in essence, in
those situations, the Legal Services grantee is participating .
in a system that deprives Joe Citizen out there, who was just
in a car accident or wanted to buy 'a house or was engaged in a.
divorce, had to do something with +the legal system, to
subsidizing the Legal Services igrantees shows in political or
ideological agenda.

Now, I‘m not going to speak to the merits of those
political or ideological agendas. One might be pro-cholce and
think that abortion related liﬁigation should be available to
individuals. One might bYe pr5~life and think that pro-life

activity support should be available to individuals. No
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matter where one stands on any sort of legislative project, as
soon as it goes into the legislature, it becomes
controversial. |

The point is that all of these activities are, by
their very nature, political or ideological. If it’s
something going on in the legislature, if it’s something that
a Legal Service grantee is lobbying on, it’s something
political.

Even if it might be milguetoast, even if it’s
something like. making sure social security recipients get
their checks on time, if it’s in the legislature, there’s
somebody against it, there’s some reason it’s inn the
legislature; it’s a controverted issue. And oftentimes these
issues that IOLTA funds are used for are much more
controversial than making sure the mails run on time.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Scully, let me interrupt you.

MR. SCULLY: Yes.

_ CHAIRMAN UDDO: I really need to get you to focus on
how this relates to reauthorization and what you want us to do
with respect to reauthorization.

MR. SCULLY: Okay. As Jong as the Legal Services

grantees are permitted to accept IOLTA funds, they will be
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impacting upon First Amendmentirights of citizens. 8So what we
would urge this board to consider would be to adopt a policy
in the best of all worlds, where grantees would not be
permitted to participate in +the infringement on First
Amendment rights.

Ways that could be done; for instance, would he to
require that no IOLTA funds be accepted by grantees unless (a)
those funds were generated through voluntary contributions and
not a mandatory program, and (b) full disclosure had been
given to the clients whose fu%nds generated those funds that
eventually went to the Legal Sérvicas grantees.

A less comprehensive 'way to address that would be to
prohibit Legal Services grantees from using IOLTA funds to
engage in political or ideological activities. One first step
in that would be to prohibit them from using IQOLTA funds for
anything they would be prohibited from using federal tax
dollars for.

I think that is a less broad and a less satisfying
solution because I think ther?e’s the likelihood of a Legal
Services grant -- because Legél Services grantees obviously
can use money for political and ideoclogical purposes under

certain circumstances even with federal funds. But
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nevertheless, that would be at least a way of mitigating the
impact and tﬁe damage to the First Amendment rights of all of
those citizens out there who are just drawn into the court
system.

That basically sums up what the Washington Legal
Foundation would like you to consider.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Scully.

Mr. Xirk?

MR KIRK: I have nothing.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Wittgraf?

MR. WITTGRAF: I don’t think I have anything, thank
you.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Dana?

MR; DANA: Mr. Scully, I have to make a disclosure.
I’'m a member of the ABA IOLTA Commission, Interest on Lawyers/’
Trust Accounts. I argued the case to bring IOLTA to name
where it is supplementing the funding of Legal Services from
this corporation.

I don’t accept your characterization of what IOLTA
is or how IOLTA funds are generated. I think that if a client
had a property interest in the funds that they can’t get

themselves, we would have had a problem long ago. It is not
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clear to me how your =-- if Legal Services grantees are
prevented from taking IOLTA funds and those funds go elsewhere
to do what you represent, go to other organizations who are
not LSC grantees, to represent interests which Congress for
one reason or another has decided our interest that it doesn’t
want to pay for, I don’t see how the point you’re making is
solved; it just is sort of a Pontius Pilate approach to the
problenm.

So if there is, in fact, a problem, it would seem to
me <that just making sure that the Legal Services grantees
den’t touch this money is not seolving it.

.MR. SCULLY: Two points: first of all, with respect
to the property interest, there’/s two elements of that. First
of all, what has never been /litigated in the courts. with
respect to the property ihtereét is the beneficial use of the
principal. What’s ever been brought up, the cases coming out
of Florida and the sort of advisory opinions by the various
state supreme courts implementing IOLTAs, have discussed the
taking of the actual interest and not the taking of the
beneficial use of the property.E

But I don’t want focus on that taking issue. I

think that even if you put aside the argument as to whether
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the client has a property interest in the money placed into an
IOL‘I‘A acccount, the --

MR. DANA: They clearly have that, the only question
is whether they have a property interest in the interest that
they can’t get.

MR. SCULLY: Right, well, that goes back to mine
about the beneficial use, in the taking of that beneficial
use. But what I'm just saying is putting all of that aside,
for argument’s sake, for me to sort of conceive that beyond,
that does not still cure the First Amendment problem, because
an individual is still -- if he wants to participate in many
legal transactions =-- is still forced to participate into the
IQOLTA systemn.

Whether he had a property interest in that money
that’s taken and given to the IOLTAs or nct, he has to choose
-= the times when his entry into the system 1is somewhat
voluntary -- does he want to for instance choose to perhaps
subsidize something political or ideological that may go
against the very grain of his most fundamental beliefs, or
does he want to engage in this legal transaction he would be
otherwise entitled to? And that’s the First Amendment

conflict right there.
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With respect to the éontius Pilate problem, I do not
at all at all believe that if Legal Services grantees stopped
accepting IOLTA funds, that +that would solve the
constitutionality problems of IOLTA. And that’s why I
indicated that Washington Legal Foundation is concerned with
the broader problem but was merely going to address the Legal
Services Corperation’s role in that.

Since Legal Services Corporation is one of the
largest receivers of TIOLTA ﬁunds == at least across the
country, perhaps not in main -~ it certainly might have a
ripple effect where the implementors of IOLTAs, whether state
supreme courts or state legislatures, might rethink this First
amendment implications and might decide to rediract the
program so as to take care of these Firsé Amendment problems.

But I think more significaﬁtly, the gquestion that
you all, as members of the [Board of the Legal Services
Corporation, have to ask yoursélves is whether you will be a
participant by allowing granteeﬁ to accept IOLTA funds, will,
in essence, be a participant iﬁ the impacting upon the First
Amendment rights of those citi#ens out there. And that’s a
question that you, if you belieye in c¢ivil liberties, have to

examine in your own conscience.
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CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thank you, Mr. Scully.

Mr. French? Mr. Al French, U.S. Department of
Agriculture? |

MR. BOEHM: He stepped out for a second, I believe
he thought he was following Libby Whitley and Tom Wilson;
they’re available. |

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Okay.

Ms. Whitley and Mr. Wilsqn? Welcome +to the
committee, you might want to identify yourselves for the
record, which I guess I haven’t been getting everyone to do
today. |

PRESENTATION OF LIBBY WHITLEY AND TOM WILSON

MS. WHITLEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is
Libby Whitley. I’m here representing the American Farm Bureau
Federation.' I serve as the assistant director of National
Affairs, here in the Washington office.

By way of description of the Farm Bureau, we
represent 3.9 million members in 50 states plus Puerto Rico.
Of: those 3.9 million, about 2 million are farmers. I would
also say, by way of explanation, elaborating on some of
Mr.Gempler‘s earlier comments, agriculture is not a monolithic

industry. Not all farmers in the country are employers. We
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estimate that probably there are about 700,000 employers, and
of that, a minority are actuallfy subject to wage and hour laws
and the worker protection standards, which generates 'the
problem with Legal Servicas. |

It’s in the contaext: of our growers’ problems with
Legal Services funded migrant advocacy acﬁivities that I want
to come bkefore you today. We appreciate the opportunity to
share with the committee some of our congerns., As you all
probabkly know, over the years, the American Farm Bureau has
testified many times before this hoard and before Congress
about the probklems that growers experience with Legal Services
grantees. : i

I want to assure you that our problems are very
real, practical problems., And we’re seeing them right now in
probably, I estimate, about 20 states nationwide. It all has
to do the LSC prosecution and migrant farm worker claims.

And despite the fact i1:h.a|.t we’ve come to you pretty
consistently for the last 10 years, the problems continue
unabated, and, 1in fact, I would say, they’re expanding
exponentially around the country right now in states where we
have not traditionally seen migrant farm worker litigation

problems, certainly up in <thHrough the northern tier of
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midwestern states is a good example.

In March of last year, Keith Eckel, who is president
of +the Pennsylvania Farmers’ Association, which 1is our
Pennsylvania affiliate, and he is also a board member and
member of the Farm Bureau Executive Committee, testified
before your board. He pointed out that our major problem lies
with the badly flawed Migrant and Seasonal Agricultural Worker
Protection Act =-- we call it MSWPA, you’ll also see it
referred to as AWPA.

Ironically enough, MSWPA was enacted as a consensus
measure betwgen farm organizations, farm bureau, other ag
groups, migrant activists, including the Migrant Legal Action
program, one of your grantees, and the Reagan Labor
Deparfment.

We have two major problems with MSWPA, and I’m
telling you this for background purposes. First is the
private right of action, which effectively eliminates any of
the administrative enforcement of the Act, so far as we can
see. The other problem is that there is no distinction in the
Act between technical de minimis wviolations and major
violations in the way it’s administered by Legal Services

attorneys.
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And I would also say that at the appropriate time,
the industry may choose to pursue amendments to try to fix
MSWPA in Congress, and we acknowledge that this is not the
purview of this board. But:; we would not have the major
problems we do with MSWPA if we didn’t have an activist
taxpayer~-funded free bar, and that’s the problem that we’re
dealing with.

When you overlay the two provisions I mentioned a
moment ago with the existence of this free bar, you have what
we consider a toxic mix. And we’re seeing the problem come to
fruition today.

We’re in an unforeseen situation -- and I can assure
you that the Farm Bureau and I don’t want to speak for other
agricultural groups, but I’'m .reasonably certain they would
share my view —-— we would never. have endorsed MSWPA had we any
idea of the extent of the proplems it would cause within a
short five or six years, MSWPH was only enacted in 1984. It
has become fully implemented since 1985. And in six years, we
really have seen an onslaught of litigation of unprecedented
proportion.

And we hear a lot about the political and financial

might of the farm community and the political and financial
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powerlessness of the migrant community. I want to suggest to
you that there is very little way farmers in this nation~-
and there are less than 2 million farmers right now. The most
recent statistics show that they’re about 1.9 million farmers.
There is very little way we compete with the almost half
billion dollars in migrant funding available right now under
current taxpayer-funded programs.

And of that half billion, 20 million is represented
by your migrant programs. There is no way we can come up with
a litigation war chest to begin to compensate for that, and
that’s part of ocur problem.

MR. WITTGRAF: Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Yes?

MR. WITTGRAF: Ms. Whitley, I'm not sure I
understood, you said "a half billion" --

'MS. WHITLEY: One half billion dollars.

MR. WITTGRAF: What are you referring to in the half
billion?

MS. WHITLEY: That covers the range of migrant
funding available under all of federal programs. I'm not
trying to suggest that that’s your funding exclusively.

Migrant education, migrant health, migrant training,
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Department of Labor programs, JTPA Section 402 grantee monies,
the whole range, but it’s ab@ut a little in excess of $500
million a year.

MR. WITTGRAF: Mast of which is not litigation
related?

MS.. WHITLEY: About 20 million of it is your
funding. :

MR. WITTGRAF: Right. So the 20 million that’s
supposed --

MS. WHITLEY: Between your money and IQOLTA mcnies
that are dedicated to migrant programs, we estimate it’s about
20 million. Obviously becausé we don’t know all the money
that’s dedicated to the --

MR. WITTGRAF: That fine. You threw me off with a
half billion, right, thank you.

MS. WHITLEY: Part| of that 20 million would be
represented. And those are very rough figqures, but I suggest
that they’re not far off. Bear in mind, you’re throwing that
kind of money at a population ~- figures vary, it depends on
whether you’re counting migranﬁ and seasconal jebs or actual
migrant workers, the estimates%vary between less than half a|

million pecple up to a'max of 5 million.. -
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And even if you assume that there are 5 million
migrants out there, which we do not think there are, I think
that the figure even under the seasonal agricultural worker
program which is part of the Immigration Reform and Control
Act, 1.3 million workers stepped forward to be legalized
through the SAW program. After the adjudications were
completed -~ I think there still may be a few remaining--
less than a million people gqualified.

I mean, it depends, the number and -- in fact, the
Legal Services Corporation funded an economic study about
three or four years ago trying to address the number of actual
migrants in this country. There are no good figures. But
even so, if you’re talking half a billion dollars and, at the
largest, a population of around 5 'million people, which we

think is inflated, that’s a lot of money that pertains to a

very few number of people.

And about 20 million is dedicated to litigation and
representational activities; that’s 1larger than the entire
budget of the American Farm Bureau. But the point I’m making
is that when you’re talking about a community that is
financially and politically powerless, I would dispute that

representation.
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Aind in fact, I’ve’ been in meetings with Legal
Services attorneys who represent themselves as the enforcement
arm of the Department of Labér on the Migrant and Seasonal
Agriculture Worker Protection Act. And I think if that’s
true, then they deserve the oversight and control that you
would afford any of the actual civil servants on that issue.
But, of course, the whole question of oversight and control is
strenuously objected to byi the Legal Services migrant
grantees.

And what I‘m really here to talk to you about today
is accountability bkecause that we see is the major issue.
We’/re not here to deny migrant workers access to the courts,
no matter what the representations that have been made to you
claim. We’ve never advocated that position, and I provided
for you in the handouts I’ve given you, a copy of our 1991
policy on Legal Services and on farm labor, which I think will
lay out for you very clearly, a;s you review them, our position
on those two issues.

While we believe ~- and our policy states clearly--

that there is a role to be plfayed by Legal Services in this
country, representing migrant farm workers, we believe it’s

also appropriate and timeléy to talk about equitable
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limitations on the behavior of those attorneys. And it’s in
that context again that we have endorsed the major package of
reform introduced by Bill McCollum and Charlie Stenholm in the
form of H.R. 1345, introduced this year.

We think the Legal Services program, as it exists
today, is badly flawed. I’11] get to our specific
recommendations, but £first I would like to outline a few of
the problems, and I don’t want to go into a lot of detail. I
think Mike Gempler provided for you an excellent overview.

Washington State 1is somewhat unusual. The
Washington Growers League is an entity that I wish we had more
of around the country. They have an ability to get the word
out to the most labor-intensive farmers and the vast majority
of farmers don’t hire anybody and don’t hire enough workers to
fall under worker protection standards. So organizations like
the Washington Growers League are very effective in two-way
communications in doing the MSWPA seminars that Mr. Gempler |
referred to and, again, in getting word back from his grower
members about the nature and extent of the problem that
they’re encountering. I wish we had more data like that.

But there are very few organizations 1like the

Washington Growers League out there because, in most parts of
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the country, vyou don’t have a;concentration of heavily labor-
intensive agficulture like iﬁ Washington. There are a few
states: Florida, obviously, ETexas, the Pacific Northwest,
Washington, Oregon, Californial But in most other states the
agriculture industry is 'very' diverse by its nature. It’s
rural. It’s isolated. |

A lot of the same réasons you have proposed to you
for leaving the migrant advécacy program as it’s created
today, those same argumentsé apply to farmers. They're
isolated. They’re independenf. They‘re hard to reach. But
anyway, I think Mike Gempler’s statement illustrated for you a
lot of the problems that we’re?hearing about nationwide.

But Congress has madh it clear that Legal Services
attorneys are not to engage in a number of practices,
including lobbying, union ofganizing, and participating in
political demonstrations. ‘In practice, Legal Services
attorneys ignore these statutor& restraints, or they"dodge the
restrictions by using IOLTA funﬁing to do it, or, as they say,
nonpublic funds. I think a ﬁot of the grantees view their
role very differently than the @ne.Congress envisioned in 1974

when it set up the corporation.f -

I would like to say that we strongly defend any
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American’s constitutional right to take whatever legal means
are avalilable to support economic, social, peolitical, or
judicial reform. But we do not feel that taxpayer dollars

should be used to undertake that kind of an agenda. Nor do we

think gquasi-public employees should get around the

restrictions in the Act by using what they claim to be
nonpublic funding to do so. |

We’ve observed a lot of instances over the years.
Let me just highlight a couple for you. Union organizing:
These include, in 1984, the Internaticnal Farm Workers Union,
which Texas Rural Legal Aid undertook to represent, and farm
worker strikes organized in the late 770s and early ‘80s in
Florida by Florida Rural Legal Services. Recently TRLA has
apparently been engaged in union organizing in the Las Cruces,
New Mexico area. And I pfovided for you a copy of a press
report from the June 3, 1991 Texas Lawyer, that details a
little of that.

Grassroots organizing: in 1981, MLAP organized a
series of one-day miniconferences around the country to
provide training and discussion intended to improve networking
and coalition building in support of farm workers. I don’t

know how much money MLAP spent on organizing those, but it was
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at a time when they were turning away eligible clients because
the didn’t ~-- they claimed -- have enough money to continue
representing them.

Lobbying: MLAP and 1its state affiliates lobby
Congress, state legislatures, and federal agencies frecquently.
Such as during the negotiatiop of the 1985 EPA Farm Worker
Pesticide Protection regulatioqs and in 1986, the Immigfation
Reform and Control Act. I frgquently observe them up on the
Hill lobbying.

Administrative rulemaking -- and I'm going to leave
a lot of that discussion to my associate, Tom Wilson, who’s
here to talk in some detail aboﬁt the litigation he’s involved
in, but I will say that the ;ndustry has spent, literally,
millions of deollars since 1987 defending the agency
interpretation of the 1986 Immigration Reform and Control Act.

These kind of activities go way beyond the' simple
day~-to~day delivery of legal services to the poor. And Ifve
got to tell you, the legal bills are driving growers out of
business around the country. i’ve also provided in your set

of ‘attachments a letter to the House Judiciary Committee from

Congressman L.F. Payne of Virginia. 'And his description of a

case that came up in-his congrgssional 'district is excellent;
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I think it’s a good profile of the type of problem growers are
encountering arcund the country.

We believe strongly that it doesn’t make sense to us
that if there are problems in agricultural employment, driving
farmers out of business and eliminating 5obs is not the way to
help migrant farm  workers. We believe that frequently
grantees seem to think that the best way to eliminate problems
in agricultural employment is to eliminate the employment;
that doesn’t make any sense.

Earlier, vyou asked why farmers don’t file more
administrative complaints with the Bar and Rule 11 motions.
The simple fact is they can’t afford to. When they’ve been in
the situation which, as Mike Gempler pointed out, many farmers
feel is extortionate to begin with, filing a Rule 11 motion is
more money out of their pocket in pursuit of whaﬁ may give
them a great deal of psychological and personal satisfaction,
but it comes off their bottom line.

5 These are not big corporate farmers. For the most
part, these are small quys, they’re in fresh fruit and
vegetable and horticultural specialties industries. They are
not price-supported by the federal government. = These guys

rise or fall on a variety of factors that are totally. out . of

fliversified Reporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
{202) 628-2121




m 1 O

10
11
12
i3
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

1i8

their control: the markets, foreign trade -- trade, in most of
these commodities, is making' significant 'inroads in U.s.
production right now =-- the wedthér.

On the East Coast, épplegrowers have had one good
year in the last five. And' when I say "good year," I’m
talking about a year when they make any money at all, not a
year when they’re buying a new Mercedes. The average fruit
and vegetable grower hopes to Qet cne good year out of four.
He hopes to have another year ﬁhere he breaks even. And he’s
going to write off the other two.

And when you’re locking at $50- and $60,000 in legal
bills for cases that brought, many times, on a de minimis or
technical violation of a very complicated statues, when you
ask him to go after the opposirig attorney on a Rule 11 motion
and his lawyer says, "Yeah, I’'d be happy to go after him." --

this quy is a crock. This g@y is engaging in activities I
can‘t believe any ethical lawyér would even contemplate, much
less engage in. "But it’s going to cost you another $50- or
$60,000 to get to court," the érower says, "I can’t do that.
I‘m already out on the edge any%ay." And they walk away from
it. |

We do, however, have Rule 11 moticns pending against
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two migrant attorneys right now, one up in Illinois and one in
Florida. And because I‘m not privy to either of those two

cases and I don’t honestly know -- I can’t speak for the

parties in each case -- I will be happy to try to get more

information and provide it to you if it’s appropriate'. But I
am aware of two instances where Rule 11 motions are pending
right now.

I admit not all agricultural employers are above
reproach. A lot of them need to do a lot better job in
complying with the law.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Excuse me a second, Ms. Whitley, you
said Rule 11 motions are too expensive. I thought you were
going to address disciplinary complaints.

MS. WHITLEY: I’'m sorry, I overlooked it. Same
situation, complicated, however, by the fact that in most
cases the Bar Assocliation as we know is very strongly
supportive of the activities of Legal Services, and we don‘t
find they’re taken seriocusly. The one I am aware of, which I
think Mr. Wilson can speak to in more detail -- he was
involved in it -- came back with a one-line response from the
state Bar Association, after providing for them luminous

correspondence, and I71l1l let Mr. Wilson respond to that.
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But again, it’s the same situation where you have a
farmer paying out of his pocket for a situation he already
considers to be extortionate. They want to walk away from it.
They want to walk away from it; they want to settle it; they
pray it never comes back.

Some of them take very affirmative steps to make
sure it never comes back. They mechanize as far as possible;
they reduce their operations. If they’re contemplating
retirement -- and bear in mind, the average age of the farmers |
in this country is not getting .any younger. You walk into any
Farm Bureau meeting, and you don‘t see anything but a grey
head in the room, and you wonder who’s going to be farming in
ten years. :

So they think to themselves, "I'm not going to go
through this again. I was tninking about retiring in five
years. I think I’m going to retire now. Besides which, ny
operation won’t withstand another one or two of these
lawsuits. I might as well get out now, while I‘ve got a
little equity left." That is not an unusual situation.

So I started to say, inot all ag employers are above
reproach; we admit that. The Farm Bureau is committed to

working with our menbers to make sure that they understand
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their responsibilities under the law. We’re no different than
any other employer group. We’ve got good employers, and we’ve
got bad employers. But I absolutely believe that the vast
majority of farmers are committed to understanding their
responsibilities under the law and want to do the best they
can.

For that reason, we think that the best interests of
both farmers and workers would be served by trying to
regularize the problem and figure out a way to resolve
conflicts without having to resort to litigation to do 1it.
For that reason, we endorse the Legal Services Reform Act thaf
was first introduced ‘89 and then again in ‘90 and has now
been reintroduced, as I said, earliér in the form of H.R.
1345.

And rather than go through every single provision
and take your time today, because I know our time is short,
I’ve submitted, again, in the package that I handed you, our
statement that we’ve provided to Congressman Barney Frank in
his one day of hearing on reauthorization in March of this
year.

Let me just point out a few highlights that we think

are the key provisions for agriculture. Section IV of the
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selicitation provisicn will help solve one of our biggest
problems, and that is inappropriate client solicitation.
Section V, the procedural safegquards will eliminate the
fishing expeditions brought about by John Doe notice pleading
which Legal Services targets a farmer and then builds his case
during discovery.

Section VII, VIII, and IX, which are time-keeping,
local beoard control, and private funds, are important
strudtural reform which will impose a standard of
accountability on Legal  Services grantees so that
inappropriate activities can be' identified, analyzed, and
prevented. Section XI, pompetition, will assist in returning
the programs to Congress’ original intent, which is maximum
delivery of day-to~day Legal Services support.

Section XII, the attorney’s fees section, will.
eliminate another one of our biggest precblems, and that’s
unreasonable demands for attorney’s fees in cases where the
plaintiff may prevail in minor3claims. And I recommend that
you review the opinion of Judge Silvia Rambo in Pennsylvania,
which I’ve attached to the package I‘ve given you, that’s a
1990 case 'in Sharp v. Roth. A situation where this is the

third time, by the way, that  that grower has been sued by
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Friends of Farm Workers.

He was sued first in 1985, the year that MSWPA
became effective in agriculture, and it eliminated half of his
operation. In order to pay the judgement, he had to reduce
his farming operation by half. And he became evangelical
about compliance with MSWPA and wage and hour law. He became
a real advocate for the law. He talked to grower groups. He
was very active 1in his Fruit Growers Association in
Pennsylvania, and was targeted again.

And then after he had the temerity to stand up in
field hearings in, I think, 1988, Congressiocnal field
hearings, when his Congressman =-- in fact, Bill Goocdling
called these hearings =-- he was targeted again. The original
demand in that case was for over $100,000 in behalf of a very
short list of plaintiffs. The actual damages, as the judge's
opinion will show you, actually coculd have been =-- had the
judge awarded the maximum damages on all claims, which she did
not do, it would have been $14,500.

3 She awarded damages of $3,074.. They actually also
went after attorney’s fees in excess of $60,000. She granted
$9,153.63 in. attorney’s fees, but her discussion of the

conduct of the case 1is very révealing, and we don‘t. believe
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that to be an isclated example. aAnd I recommend that you
review her opinion in that casa.

MR KIRK: Did the farmer have, likewise, high fees,
himself, that he incurred?

MS. WHITLEY: $60,000 and still growing.

In that particular case, the issue turned on suffer
to work. There is a provision in the law which says that if a
grower suffers scomeone to work, then he is responsible for
their wages.

This involved two women who were wives or commonlaw
wives of some of his pruning crew. And he was aware that they
were 1in +the orchard, the only thing he did neot do,
unfortunately -- I’m sure he regrets it now -~ he did not get
the sheriff to escort them off his property. But he knew that
if he had done so, he would lose the members of hié pruning
crew, understandably. He was| sued on behalf of thosse two
women, alleging that he owed them a full year’s wages because
he. suffered. them to work, as they were in the orchard during
the pruning activities.

I hope we’ve illustrated for you a little of the
social -and. economic¢' pain this 1is causing members of my

industry. And I would be -happ;y to answer any questions you
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might have, either now or for the record. I’ll take gquestions
now or after Mr. Wilson.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Why don’t we let Mr., Wilson ==

MR. WILSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. My name is
Tom E. Wilson. I’m a partner in the Washington, D.C. office
of the law firm Seyfarth, Shaw, Fairweather, and Geraldson.

Since 1983, I’ve represented the New England Apple
Council and other organizations of East Coast apple growers in
numerous lawsuits and administrative proceedings. Every one
of those proceedings has been engendered by publicly-funded
lawyers employed by grantees of the Legal Services
Corporation.

The experience of the apple growers makes a strong
case, but the time has come to enact reform designed to ensure
that LSC grantees conduct their affairs in a manner consistent
with the original intent of the Legal Services Corporation
Act; that is, to provide for the day-to-day needs of the poor
rather than engaging -in broad administrative rulemaking cases
designed to frustrate the operations of government programs
which LSC grantee lawyers believe should not exist.

In order for the committee to have a proper

understanding of the experience of the apple growers, some
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background is neceassary. The New England Apple Council and
other East Coast apple growers have, for many years, found it
impossible to recruit an adequate supply of apple harvesters
from the domestic agriculturai workforce; that is to say,
legal harvesters.

This reality has forced the apple growers to choose
between: one, harvesting their apples using undocumented
workers from the agricultural labor black market, which led to
the reforms reflected in IRCA; or two, importing harvest
workers from abroad to supplement the available domestic
workforce through the so-calléd. H2 0Offshore Worker program
administered by the Department of Labor and INS.

The apple growers opted to use the legally~obtained
workers through the H2 program. H2 program participants are
among the most heavily regulated agricultural organizations in
this nation. - Wage rates are established by the United States
government. Growers are required to provide housing without
charge. Grower housing is inspected before each harvest
season and must meet state aﬁd- federal health and safety
standards. Grower payroll red@rds and -employment practices
are monitored by state and federal officials.to ensure that

all requirements of the H2 pregﬁam are complied with.
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Given the comprehensive regulatory requirements that
the H2 growers must meet in order ¢to participate in the
program, it is hardly surprising that the allegations of the
farm workers that they mistreat, that the apple growers
mistreat their H2 workers, is wvirtually nonexistent. Despite
theix adherence to DOL-imposed requirements of the H2 progran,
the apple growers have, for many years, been subjected to a
torrent of litigation instigated by publicly-funded LSC
grantees.

Such 1litigation +typically does not involve
allegations that the apple growers have in any way mistreated
their workers. Rather, the LSC grantee lawsuits are designed
to secure reinterpretation of DOL regulations calculated to
drive up the cost of participation ' in the H2 program to a
point where the use of the program is unfeasible.

LSC grantee lawyers, on repeated occasions, have
proclaimed publicly that they believe the H2 program is bad
public policy and that, therefore, the program should be
eliminated. In fact, a number the same attorneys who over the
years have engaged in sustained litigation against the apple
growers, were actively involved in the legislative process

associated with IRCA attempting, unsuccessfully, to hobble the
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H2A provisions of that legislation.
Because of the undeniable shortage of documented
domestic v.:orkers ‘to satisfy the harvest labor needs of this

nation’s agricultural economy, opponents of the H2 program

have no factual basis for elimjinating the program’s existencas.
Be that as it may, if LSC-sponsored lawyers are successful
through litigation in making the H2 program so expensive that
no grower can afford to use iit, they will have achieved the
same result as would have occurred had the program been

legislatively eliminated.

Let me give you one specific example of how the LSC
grantee attorneys have created havoc within the H2 program.

In 1982, farm worker advocateq objected to the pay practices

of several apple growers 'in Wést Virginia. Instead of suing
the affected apple growers and perhaps DOL in West Virginia,
where all of the parties could be found and brought before the:
court, the farm workers sued onf}.y the Department of Labor, not
in West Virginia, but in the Di;strict of Columbia.

The central matter at issue in that lawsuit was the
DOL regqulation controlling year-to-year adjustments made in
piece rates which users of the H2 program are raguired to pay.

Since, if the farm worker advocates prevailed, H2 program
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piece rates would be dramatically escalated.

DOL argued to the court that the absent growers who
would be asked to pay the higher rates were indispensible
parties to the litigation. Since the District of Columbia
court could not join those absent growers in the case, the
were not within the power and control of the court, DOL argued
that the litigation should be dismissed.

The LSC dgrantee advocates vigorously and
successfully opposed DOL’s motion. As a consequence, the
rights of affected West Virginia farmers were adjudicated in
the District of Columbia entirely in their absence. The LSC
lawyers secured an injunction against the Department of Labor
which forced DOL to require the growers to pay dramatically
higher piece rates. Fy

In 1983, the LSC-sponsored lawyers went back into
the district court in the District of Columbia and had the
ruling, which originally had affected only West Virginia
farmers -- on West Virginia facts, by the way -- expanded to
all users of the H2 program, even though nc grower had ever
had his day in court on the issue.

As a consequence, the pilece rate wages of every

grower using the H2 program were dramatically escalated. 1In
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some cases, 40 percent in a single year, pursuant %o a
judicial determination enginéered by LSC grantee lawyers
without a single grower ever appearing in the courtroom where
the controlling decision was méde.

Since the events of 1983, the LSC grantee lawyers
have systematically tried to force the apple growers who
participate in the H2 programfto pay the higher wage rates
mandated in the growers’ absénce. Because the wage rates
engineered by the farm worker advocates would inflict virtual
financial ruin on the growers,!the growers have had to resist
the escalated wage rates in coﬁrt. That effort, in turn, has
brought about sustained litigaﬁion which has cost the growers
& fortune in legal fees.

Suffice it to say that if every sté? of this grim
process, even if they went in' court, the growers are being
bled to death by the cost ofiparticipating in the process.
For their part, it is a matter éf complete indifference to the
farm worker advcocates whether?HZ users abandon %the program
because the wage rates requiied are too high or because
litigation costs are too steep; Either way, their ultimate
goal, the eradication of the' H2 program, will have been

acconplished. |
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There’s a new wrinkle that’s been added recently by
the legal aid lawyers on suing over the H2 program. And now,
what they appear to be adopting as a routine is they sue under
some provision of the H2 program, and they £file a parallel
complaint with the Special Counsel of the Department of
Justice alleging that the growers, by hiring these foreign
workers through a process which is regulated by the Department
of Labor, are discriminating against workers on the basis of
their citizenship or their alien status; that engenders a
second elaborate proceeding where the growers have to defend
themselves. |

In a case that I’m familiar with in New York right
now, they’ve figured out a third way =-- a hat trick =-- one
issue, three proceedings. They’ve initiated now a state
proceeding before the State Department of Labor of the State
of New York on exactly the same issues. And of course, the
growers have to defend on all three fronts at the same time.

Now, on this piece rate issue, of course the growers
who were not invelved in the West Virginia litigation when
there was an attempt to impose those piece rates on them, as
you would expect, sued to try and prevent that from happening.

The case has had a very long and torturcus history, but the
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case was brought by the grow%ers against the Department of
Labor saying, "You can’t iméose these piece rates on us
because they were mandated in litigation to which we were not
parties."

The farm workers joinéd in that litigation, counter-
sued for the year at issue, which was 1985, plus 1984 which
was not at issue in the growerilawsuit against the Department
of Labor, plus 1983. And noﬁ, they’ve secured a liability
determination by Judge Ritchie who issued the original
determination because the case %as transferred to the District
of Columbia. And now -- get this == now, they’re saying that
the growers acted in bad faiﬁh for defending against their
counter- claims. And they waﬁt £400,000 in legal fees plus
the liability for the unpaid piece rates, plus interest from
the date the wages were not paid.

Now, what option d¢ <these grower have but to
continue this process? And I will tell you further that the
growers have been attempting fo# the last four years to settle
this case for a full payment oftthe 85 wages, and they won’t
do it. Why? 1It’s a freebie; ii's not costing them anything.
They ask for /83 and ’84; they roll the dice. There’s nothing

in it for them to sell.
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So now this case is on its way to the courts in the
D.C. circuit right now, and we have a briefing scheduled. But

I will tell you that the apple grower participants in the H2A

program are -- and I’m sure you people on this panel will
recognize the term =-- the clean jeans of agriculture. These
guys are so regulated, it’s unbelievable. These lawsuits

don’t involve whether you mistreated your worker or you housed
him in inferior conditions or any of that.

Some gquestions have been raised during prior
witnesses about, "Well, why don’t you file complaints for
disciplinary action?" I was invelved in some cases in
Maryland years ago, where a legal aid lawyer went into
Maryland in April 1983 and proclaimed that he, persconally, was
going to seedxto it that all the fruit harvested in the State
of Maryland was harvested by domestic workers, most of whom,
by the way, were from Central American countries or were
Haitians. They weren’t United States citizens at all, but
they had the alien status which permitted them to work in this
country.

This individual engineered the filing of 17 federal
lawsuits against four growers in Western Maryland, some of

which he won -~ and 1f you want to get into the details, I
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will tell you why he won them -~ and 175 administrative
complaints. The sanction in the administrative process is
debarment from the H2 program,i which means you don’t get any
workers to harvest your crop, which is even worse in many
respects than a lawsuit -- 175 administrative complaints.

The upshot of this has been that the two largest
growers representing 80 percent: of the fruit crops of Maryland
are out of business, 150 permanent jobs have heen eliminated,
about 350 seasonal jobs. And according to the Department of
Labor’s prevalling wage surveys, the wages since the
eradication of the H2 program in Western Maryland have gone
down.

So those remaining agricultural jebs that do exist,
the workes® are making legs. It escapes me how this kind of
activity is in the interest of the poor, whose interest these
people are supposed to protect..

Any kind of change inithe regulations is yet another
excuse to litigate the meaning of the regulation. By the way,
the lawsuits are all engineered so they’re brought in urban
districts. They’re never broﬁght -—- the effeort -is made to
avoid bringing them anywhere where there are apple workers,

where there are apple trees, whe}re there are orchards.
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They’re brought in the District of Columbia -- one
case 1in 1986, involving Virginia growers and Virginia
harvesters of Virginia apple crops was initiated in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Another one in that year in the
southern district of New York in Manhattan.

And you’ve got to defend -~ every time there’s a
requlatory change, there’s going to be litigation. And this
is a program which, unlike most agriculture, they pay higher
wages, they guarantee the pay of those higher wages. Unlike
everywhere else in agriculture, they guarantee three-gquarters
-— they have to pay three-quarters of the contract even though
the contract, for whatever reason, doesn’t work. They have to
reimburse transportation, which is not generally done in
agriculture. They have to pay for housing which is inspected
and meets all the health and safety standards.

You would think that legal aid lawyers would be out
there expending their resources trying to get U.S. workers to
take the jobs that are available and that are offered through
H2 program participants to get all these benefits; that isn‘t
what they’re doing. They’re looking to eliminate the program.

I took a deposition of a worker just two weeks ago

in Boise, Idaho, who was working for $4.75 an hour when the H2
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program, which he eschewed even though he was represented by a
Texas Legal Aid lawyer, even though that program guaranteed
him a minimum of $4.79 an hour plus all the other benefits
I’ve listed. You people figure it out. I tell you, it’s a
nystery to me, i

Furthermore, in those depositions, I +took the
deposition of two farm workers, one of whom was moving three-
inch hand lines -~ he was an i¥rigator moving three-inch hand
lines ~=and I asked him whatéhis complaint was against the
farmers. And he says, "Well, I want my wages raised."

I said, "You mean your lawyers haven’t teold you that
even if you win, if your position prevails, there’s no chance
you’re going to have you wage rate raised because the wages |
you’re paid aren’t even at issue."

"No, I didn’t know thét."

The workers are used, very often, as props. The |
name of the game is get the narrow end of the wedge, get in
court, and then extract pain Qnd suffering from the growers
until they finally give it up. |

In the Maryland situation, we filed a complaint with
the Bar Association. : We got a one~line answer. We wrote

lattars to the Legal Aid Asscciation in Maryland; four feet of
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137 .
documents we provided them -- literally, we Xeroxed it all and
sent it to them, some 6,000 pages of stuff of what was going
on in those administrative complaints. Never got a response
from them; they couldn’t care less.

And in the meantime, those jobs out there were
eliminated. And mavbe somebody can tell me someday how the
workers hafe benefitted from that. A few workers got some
money; I’/11 give you that. But it just left the program in
shambles.

And they’re driving growers who want to participate
in the program, who want to comply with the law, who want to
eschew undocumented workers -- they’re driving them out of a
program which was enécted by Congress, as recently as 1986,
with the specific purpose of giving agricultural employers in
those areas where there’s a dearth of documented domestic
workers to harvest their crops, access to legal workers.

MS. WHITLEY: I have one additional comment. I
would like to another observation which treats some of the
points .Mr. Wilson has raised. Legal Services attorneys
lobbied the 1986 Immigraticn Reform and Contrecl Act through
the ehtire subcommittee, full committee, floor, on both sides, ;

the House and Senate.
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The litigation Mr. Wilson talked about dealing with
crop years ‘83, ‘84, and ‘85 and ‘86 had to do with the pieﬁe
rates under +the program prior to passage' of the 786
Immigration Reform and Control ‘Act. Those piece rates and the
methodology by which they were determined has been mooted out
by the ’86 Act. However, the litigation is still ongeing. It
has cos£ growers millions of dollars in escrowed wages,
attorney’s fees, administrative complaint representational
costs.

Meanwhile, the Legal Services attorneys are lobbying
the 1986 IRCA passage. They made their case at the
subcommittee and both House and Senate full committees, were
not successful in pushing thelr view of the issue; tried floor
amendments, were defeated on the floor in both the House and
Senate; then were not successful in pushing their view of the
issue. Tried floor amendments, were defeated on the floor in
both the House and Senate, theén moved to the administrative
representational, working the administrative development of
the regulations, were unsuccéssful in prevailing at that
level, and have been litigating again this very same issue
that Mr. Wilson has been litigating since 1983.

We have spent millions of dollars since 1987

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N/W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 628-2121




m

v B d O

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
13
20
21

22

139
sustaining our arguments again, as we did throughout the
congressional process and throughout the regulatory
development process, and now we are representing them again in
court. ‘

Cur industry can’t sustain these kinds of costs, and
you’re going to see happen what happened in Maryland, whiéh is
literally thousands of acres -- drive up through Hancock,
Maryland. I invite you to do it this fall. You tell me how
many workers you see harvesting those apples. They’re falling
on the ground. The biggest grower in Maryland is now running a
roadside stand.

CHAIRMAN UDDQO: Thank you. Let me see if we can get
some questions from the committee. Mr. Dana, do you want to
go first this time?

MR. DANA: No.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Wittgraf?

MR. WITTGRAF: Mr. Wilson, a couple of gquestions.
First, you’re a law partner of Mr. Ilbourn?

MR. WILSON: Yes, I am.

MR. WITTGRAF: Would you remember us to him, please?
He was with us to several months last year, fine gentleman,

and a fine member of the board. Thank you.
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I missed a little.; bit of your presentation, so
forgive me, and correct me if there was something that I
missed that you addressed, if you address my question.

I understand that frou and your clients are quite
unhappy with the protracted .litigation, and you wondered, as
you indicated, at some of the practical results. could you
speak to what, if any, improprieties there were in terms of
the use of the law or the coui_n:t system by the Legal Services
attorneys? |

MR. WILSON: Wheneyer you hit -~ I mean, these
growers, for example, in :the Maryland situation with
specifically targeted. There had been in the prior ten years,

prior to 1983, one administrative complaint in the State of

Maryland, one.

In 1983 and 1984, after this declaration of war was |
issued, there were 175 complaints in two years, 17 federal

lawsuits. After the dust set%tled from that onslaught =-- of

.course, most of the growers ouly there are out of business, but

as far as I’m aware, there hasn’t been a single complaint
filed. :
Now, either Maryland Legal Aid was anesthetized

prior to 1983 and then bail re-anesthetized after 1985, or
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something else is going on here. Now, what it was -- I mean,
the issués that were raised in that litigation was one farmer,
Mr. Hepburn, was giving ladder tests. He’d given ladder tests
forever.

The ladder test that he gave, every single one of
them was monitored and observed by an employee of the Maryland
Department of Employment, every one of them. He refused to
give a ladder test after Legal Aid started raising questions
about it without it being monitored.

In fact, the individual monitor tock the ladder test
himself, and in c¢ourt. he said he passed it. This was
onslaught against these gquys, which was specifically designed
to eliminate the H2 program in Maryland, and it succeed, Mr.
Wittgraf, |

That is not an appropriate activity, I .submit to
you, of a LSC grantee. Why are they continuing te =-- I mean,
it’s not a gquestion of these wage rates, which, by the way,
are generally higher than wage rates that are prevailing in
agriculture.

It’s not a question that they’re not being paid. If
a farmer 1is not paying his workers the wages that he’s

supposed to be paying them, he ought to be sued. This is an
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effort, though, to escalate those wagaes for the specific
purpose that even if you’re not successful, you inflict such
legal costs on the growers that they abandon the program.
They say, "Oh, the heck with it. I‘m not going to do that,"
and a lot of growers have done that. That’s improper, sir.
That’s improper. It ought to be monitored.

In fact, the LSC sent an audit team down to
Salisbury, Maryland to audit Maryland Legal Aid, and they were
locked out, and then you guys found yourself in litigation
with these same Legal Aid lawyers that were crushing the
farmers out in western Maryland, and it ended up before Judge
Young in the district court iin Baltimore, and he sort of
looked dejectedly at both part;:iea and said, "Look, you guys
are supposed to be representing of interests of the poor, and

here you are fighting with one another. Can’t you work this

out?"

It was very clear ﬁhat the Legal Aid lawyers in
Maryland would.rather fight than switch. They were going to
scorched earth the thing against your auditors and your
organization at the LSC level. iIt would have taken -- you cut
off the funds; that’s what you did, for one month, and they

went to court and sued you, and that’s how it got into court.
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Then it’s pretty clear that faced with two years of
protracted litigation, the LSC just gave up, and nothing was
ever done about that, at least as far as I‘m aware. And after
the growers were crushed out there, I have te¢ admit I didn’t
follow the issue, but as far as I am aware, nothing happened.
So you talked about "Complain to somebody." Please.
Complaining costs money, and it gets you nowhere.

MR. WITTGRAF: I guess, if I understood you
correctly, you still don’t understand or can’t appreciate any
logic behind the position taken, but the litigational process
was not abused in any --

MR. WILSON: Sure it was. Sure it was. For example,
these people would come ocut of the orchard at the end of the
day, and they would be met by this Legal Aid lawyer with a
portable typewriter, and he put it on the hoed of a truck.
Now, these guy were Haitians. They didn’t speak any English
at all.

He spoke a little Creole, but not all that much, and
on the basis of that, he would ¢type up administrative
complaints and have these guys sign things they had not a clue
what was in them, and that happened repeatedly.

MR. WITTGRAF: Okay. You’re talking now about
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solicitation of plaintiffs as they came out of --—

MR, WILSCON: Well, and filing completely bogus
complaints. By the time the grower is able to establish his
innocence, believe me, he’s in financial ruin.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Thaﬁ was reported to the Maryland
Bar Association.

MR. WILSON: Yes, sir, ad nauseam. I’'m serious;
6,000 pages of stuff we Xeroxedéand sant to them.

CHAIRMAN UDDOQ: But that particular process of
filing complaints that the people didn’t know what they were
filing?

MR. WILSON: That’s correct.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: And the Bar Association, you said,
had a one-line response to that?

MR. WILSON: That’s corract.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: What was,their response?

MR. WILSON: That théy don’t find anything. They
didn’t choose to pursue it. ‘

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Wittgraf.

MR. WITTGRAF: I'm figished. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Dana.

MR. DANA: Mr, Wilsod, as you describe it, you are
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describing lawyers ostensibly receipting migrant Haitians for
the purpose of destroying that job for those clients the
following year, dragging the cost up so0 that the farmer will
hire local people. Do I get your point? You made that over
and over, and I assume that was -«

MR. WILSON: The logic behind it, as best as I’ve
been able to discern it is that if you eliminate the access
that farmers have through the H2 program to a potentially-
unlimited supply of offshore workers, then what you will do
is, given the recognized dearth of legal documented
agricultural workers in the economy, supply and demand will
drive up the cost, will drive up the wages of domestic
workers.

Well, first of all, that’s not their policy to
determiﬁé, that’s one =--

MR. DANA: No. I understand your point. It seems
to me that if; in fact, that could be established, those
lawyers were not representing their «c¢lients, they were
representing people they were not supposed to be representing.
I accept that, and I think, at least absent being set straight
by somebody who understands the law better than I do, it seems

to me that that’s patently wrong to, in the guise of
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representing one group, actualiy be representing someone else
and acting --

MR. WILSON: Well, nd, they were domestic workers.

MR, DANA: Well, my understanding is that they are
representing the H2 --

MS. WHITLEY: They do now, but they didn’t then.

MR. WILSON: They were not allowed to repraesent the
H2 workers. What they were doinq is representing the domestic
workers against an H2 grower for the purposes of making his
participation in the H2 program, which gave him access to
Jamaican offshore apple pickers so expensive that he wouldn’t
use Jamaicans anymors and would hire 100 percent domestic
workforce, if he could find them.

MR. DANA: . What was the --= okay. Then Ifve
misuﬁderstood what you’ve bheen saying all along. They have
not been --

MR. WILSON: Well, let me address --

MR. DANA: Now I think I may understand it better.
The lawyers in Maryland or WestiVirginia were not representing
the migrant farm workers in the field, they were representing
the potential workers who were not working in the field?

MR, . WILSON: They were representing ostensibly

Diversified Reparting Services, [nc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 843
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202) 828-2121




("o IS T R ¥ T

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22

147
domestic workers who were working for an H2 grower participant
who had a portion of his workforce from Jamaica, and they were
litigating supposedly on behalf of the domestic workers over
wage rates, ladder tests, this kind of stuff.

The whole purpose of litigating all these issues is
to drive up.the'ccsts -~ specifically targeting H2 growers--
to drive up the cost of participation in the program so they
will abandon use of the program. The ostensible purpose, I
presume, is that if you eliminate the access to the offshore

workers, then will be, I think, what economists called a

‘"market clearing rate" where the growers will pay whatever

wages 1s necessary to fill the Jjobs with legal domestic
workers.

Well, that isn’t going to happen. I mean, the
growers who can will then grow condeminiums instead of apples,
and the other ones will cut down their apple trees and grow
other crops, which are not as labor-intensive, or whatever.

MR. DANA: Thank you for setting me straight. Both
of you have made the statement which we heard a lot, some of
us heard a lot a year-&ago, which was, I think, that the
original intent of the Legal Services Act was to promote day-

to-day == if I may use that expression -- day-to-day legal
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needs of the poor.

What evidence do eitﬁer of you have that that is an
accurate statement of Congress’s intent back at the time of
1974.

MR. WILSON: Well, if;it wasn’t, I mean, then I have
completelf misunderstocd the whole thrust of the Legal
Services Corporation Act, and I will tell you, Mr. Dana, that
I, when I was a Wall Street lawyer, used to contribute my time
and go up to Harlem and get cases and bring them back to the
office for Legal Aid.

And those were what I understood then and I
understand now as the conventiconal purposes of Legal Aid: to
get somebody a wage he’s not being paid, to give them even a
government benefit that he’s not beind accorded for some
reason, have a poor person not be improperly thrown out by a
landlord or something. =

But the kind of litigation that we‘re talking about
here has nothing -- it has 1little to do with the workers,
frankly. It has more to do wi#h the ideological precepts of
the lawyers prosecuting cases.

MR. DANA: Ms. Whit%ey, do you have .any evidence

that Congress, when it passed t;he Legal Services Corporation
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Act, did not want Legal Services attorneys bringing the kinds
of litigation that they bring?

MS. WHITLEY: Mr. Dana, I’d have to reread the ‘74

- floor debate, but it’s my understanding, and I think the wvast

majority of members of Congress believe that Legal Services
attorneys spend most of their time in the type of activities
Mr. Wilson has just laid out, and that’s not the case in our
industry, unfortunately.

MR. DANA: I didn’t practice on Wall Street, but I
was practicing between 1966 and 1974, and there was tremendous
controversy, particularly in California, all arocund this
country, about what Legal Services lawyers were doing. Very
clear that they have represented pecple in landlord/tenant
cases, and they’ve represented c¢lass actions, and they’ve
lobbied, and they've- done all these -- they’ve represented
their clients, as we say, zealously, in every forum that
they’ve been able to, and they were doing it between 1966 and
1974, when the Legal Services Corporation Act was passed by
congress.

My question to you both is: What evidence do y.ou
have that the Congress taht passed the Act that we are trying

to administer, the corporation that we are trying to
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administer, didn’t want Legal Services attorneys to do what
they are doing now?

MR. WILSON: I can’t believe that they intended it
to do what they’re doing in the H2 program, because that’s a
program that Congress itself enacted as well, Mr. Dana, and|
these guys don‘t like the program, and they’ve made it very
clear, and they stated publicly, "We don’t like the program.
We think it’s a form of indentured servitude, therefore, we
will move heaven and earth to eliminate it."

And they’re smart enough to know that what cannot
win in the halls of Congress they can win in courtrooms by
crushing people financilally. And that’s improper. And we can

debate all you want about what the original intent of the

Legal Services was, and I'm sure there are probably as many

opinions on that as there are people here, but I think that we
will all agree what was not intended.

And I don’t think when Congress enacted the H2A
provisions of IRCA in 1986, they intended those provisions to
be made inoperable by the kind of litigation that I deal with
every day.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Let me go to Mr. Kirk, because we’re

going to have to break soon because of a competing meeting and
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lunch arrangement. I want to give everybody a chance to ask
some questions. Mr. Kirk?

MR. KIRK: I’1l let Ms. Whitley have part of ny
time. Go ahead, Ms. Whitley. |

MS. WHITLEY: Thank you, Mr. Kirk. I just wanted to
add, Mr. Dana, that this has been a terrifically controversial
program, encrmously controversial, back into the ‘60s before
it was created, when it was part of OEO, after ‘74, when the
act was a passed by Congress, and I think it’s time, and I
think that President Bush, in appointing .all of you,
recognized that it was time to resolve this controversy, and
let’s put the program back on a ground where it can deliver a
reasonable level of legal services to as many pocor pecple as
possible, and that’s what the we’re after.

MR. KIRK: Mr. Wilson, I have just one question, and
we describe this type of guestion as leading and rhetorical,
and previous ones, but let me lead you through it anyway. Do
I understand that at this point, the minimum standards that
state bar associations has set may not have been technically
violated by some of the Legal Services Corporation’s lawyers
to the extent that they were found in violation?

MR. WILSON: I guess I don’t understand your
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guestion, Mr. Kirk.

MR. KIRK: Well, states have minimum ethical
standards, such as Maryland, and you filed a complaint, and
there was no finding that the minimum standards had been
violated.

MR. WILSON: As far as I know, there was no finding
of any kind. They just declined not to consider it.

MR. KIRK: Is it youri opinion that the activities of
the Legal Services Corporation attorneys that you have
witnessed, whether they met the minimum standards or not is
not issue, but they did not meet the standards that you would
expect a government-funded attorney to have in filing lawsuits
and pursuing them?

MR.  WILSON: Very often, that’s the case, and I
think the stated motivation for all of <this is improper;
namely, the elimination of a program enacted by Congress to
provide: farmers with an alternative for harvest labor that
otherwise in the law wouldn’t exist.

MR. KIRK: So you’re isaying that, essentially, that
the government-funded attorneys ought to have something more
than the minimum ethical standards to follow, that they should

be following something of more significance.
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MR. WILSON: They ought to bring lawsuits that are
really in the interests of the people whom they represent. It
seems to me that they have a special responsibility fully to
explain to a farm worker what is at issue here and what the
implications of litigation are.

I have seen no evidence that they to that or that
they even particularly care one way or the other about it,
because what the farm workers are, are props, sir, that will
get them in a courtrcom. I mean, they’re kind of a necessary
component of what you have to do in order to work the process,
and they enlist organizations like the NAACP.

For example, this West Virginia case in my remarks,
which I talked about, is entitled "NAACP v. Donovan, and that
was an organization that they recruited for that purpose.

The AFL-CIO was the lead plaintiff in the litigation
after the enactment the of IRCA, challenging, for example, the
wage rate regulations promulgated by the Department of Labor.
I just don’t think that that’s a proper use of federal funds,
and to the growers I represent, they’re paying three sets of
legal fees in every single proceeding that I‘ve been involved
in.

They’re paying their own, they’re paying the
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Department of Labor lawyers, because they’re taxpayers, and
they’re paying the Legal Aid lawyers, plus,.they are defending
themselves against motions are $400,000 in legal fees, which
have been filed in the Frederick County case, this piece rate
case before Judge Ritchie, for defending themselves against a
counterclaim filed by the familiar workers. It’s bizarre.

But nevertheless, when the wmotion’s filed, you’ve
got to rise to it. You have no choice, particularly when
you’re talking about the kind. of numbers that we’re talking
about here, and I just think that’s improper. Now, getting a
judge to determine that is very, very difficult.

_ I can tell you, Mr. Kirk, that it was a case, the
Polk case in the western district of Virginia, in Danville,
Virginia, where Judge Kaiser determined that, "Yeah, the case
was frivolous, but I cannct say that it was brought purely for
purposes of harassment." Very tough. I mean, the lawyers in
that case sued for legal fees from the Legal Services
Corporation under that provision of your Act which permits
recovery of legal fees, but it’s a very, very tough standard.

MR. KIRK: That’s ;my point, that the minimum
standards may have been met, according te the judge in that

case, but not by the reasonahle standards that you think that
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should be followed.

MR. WILSON: In that case, he determined that the
very strict standards for recovery had not been met, the
standard of preoof that the case had been brought solely for
purposes of harassment. The other thing is that the federal
judges, I think, are very reluctant to throw the baby out with
the bath water.

I mean, Just because a Legal Services lawyer
bedeviled this defendant who is before him, this farmer who is
before him, if they award legal fees, then what that does, at
least in the mind of federal Jjudges, is it diminishes the
capacity for legitimate complaints to be brought by the same
organization.

I think there’s a terrific reluctance - and I can
understand it, and I’'m sure all of you can =-- to award
attorney’s fees, no matter how meritorious the complaint is,
the claim for attorney’s fees by the farmers is.

| MR. XIRK: That’s all I have, sir.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Wilson, my question is, and it’s

a recurring gquestion, I mean, obviously, the things that

you’re talking about today are troubling comments, and as an

aside, the stated purpose of dismantling the H2 program, was
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that ever made in print anywhere, or is that available in
print?

MR. WILSON: I think it is in print somewhere. I

mean, these are sorts of things that you don’t necessarily

write down in formal correspondence.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Well, I suspect that would be the
case, but it would certainly be helpful to me, as a board
member, to see that someone was prepared to make a statement
like that in print.

MR. WILSCN: I can represent to you, Mr. Uddo, that
those statements have been made to me personally on repeated
occasions with a smile.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Ms. Whitley shook her head that it
was in print. So if it is, I sure would likey$o see it. My
concern is that -- f don’t know what McCollum/Stenholm would
do to solve a problem like that, the kind of problems that you
all are talking about, and I think they’re different from what-
Mr. Gempler talked about this morning.

He was talking about;specific cases where, I think,
he had some concerns about procedure or the like that I think
maybe could be addressed. What you’re talking about, though,

I’'m not sure McCollum/Stenholm could do anything about that
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unless you think there is some way the corporation would be
able to exercise a judgment <that you admit federal Jjudges
don‘t want to exercise and make determinations about
enforcement of laws that Congress has enacted, and apparently
they’re aware of these things, and they haven’t gone bkack and
repealed those laws, or I assume you folks have made efforts
to try to repeal or tighten laws that you think are being
abused.

I just wonder what the corporation could possibly do
that federal judges and Congress aren’t willing to do to try
to solve that problem.

MR. WILSON: Well, I think that the attorney’s fee
provision would help. I mean, clearly the attorney’s fee
provision of McCollum/Stenholm is much broader than anything
that currently exists, and that’s a pretty effective hammer.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: But that doesn’t really seem like
the problem in the Maryland case that you‘re talking about. I
mean, it seems to me that if you got somebody that’s got a
stated purpose of dismantling a program, 175 administrative
complaints, I’m not familiar with the procedure, but were
there attorney’s fees for all those administrative complaints?.

MR. WILSCON: No. There were not attorney’s fees
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awarded, and there wouldn’t have to be, and I will tell you
because I don’t want to -- that some of those lawsuits, they
won those lawsuits. They tried them in Baltimore, Maryland,
where there are no apple trees, and some of them went very
well for the farm worker =--

CHAIRMAN UDDO: And that’s what I‘m saying. That’s
what I see as the problem with the corporation trying to make
a judgment about those kinds of things where, admittedly, it’s
a mixed bag, some you win, some you lose, some I might call
for the purpoée of harassment and somebody else might not, and
I’'m just not sure that any of the thingsg in McCollum/Stenholm
actually address the problem that you’re talking about, and
again, the Maryland situation, I don’t think the attorney’s
fees provision would help much, because it séems like an awful
lot of the activity was in forums where there were not going
to be attorney’s fees awarded anyway.

So I guess, to sort of bring it back to the
reauthorization process, I mean, is there anything in
McCollum/Stenholm that you think really addresses the kind of
problem you’re talking about, which, as I said, I think is
different from what Mr.  Gempler -was talking about this

morning?
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MR. WILSON: Yes, I think so. I think that
accountability is very important. Time-keeping, make them
account. I mean, "How much time have you been spending on
this case, and what did you get out of it, and what are the

issues?" Responsiveness to a board of directors of Legal Aid,

. they’'re =—--

CHAIRMAN UDDO: The local board?

MR. WILSON: Yes, the 1local board, that’s right.
And hopefully =-- and I think that part of the reason that I'm
here he is just to let you folks know the experience that
we’ve had, and there’s a lot of anger out there in the
agricultural community for stuff 1like this that I‘’ve talked
about. |

I mesan, this is improper, and you all ought to be
concerned about it, and you ought to start thinking -- and
viewing some of the efforts that are addressed in
McCollum/Stenholm in that 1light, saying, "well, you know,
we’re going to have to address these things. It’s an
imperfect system, and maybe the ways that we choose to address
them will be imperfect ways, but we better address them if
we’re going to do right, here."

CHAIRMAN UDDO: The other thing: have these concerns
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been brought to Congress, not in the context of Legal
Services, but in the context of the laws that are being used
to allow this kind of conduct? Because one of the things I
mentioned to Congressman McCollum, when he appeared before us,
was that it seems like a lot of the complaints against Legal
Services lawyers are really complaints against the laws that
are there that they’re enforcing.

So I’m asking you the same guestion. Is a lot of
this basically that there are a lot of laws on the books that
allow this kind of litigation, and it’s hard for us to fault
the attorneys who are using the laws that Congress has put on
the books?

MR. WILSCN: Right. You make a good point. To a

send extent, all legislation is launch it and forget it.

. Going back and making these points, we‘ve all been on Capitol

Hill, and we know how that works. I mean, it becomes a very
kind of confused message, because for every anecdote that I
can come up with, somecne else can come up with a different
and opposite anecdote, and so forth.

So it all gets kind of lost in the process, but in
the meantime, there are real, productive, tax-paying providers

of Jjobs in the agricultural community who are Jjust being
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ground up by this kind of stuff, and it can’t go on forever.

Let me tell you, if these guys across the board who
use the H2 program, the apple growers specifically, who use
the program, go the way of the western Maryland growers, it’s
not going to help the farm workers one whit. It really isn’t.
It’s going to hurt them, because those Jjobs that were
previously there won’t be there anymore.

MS. WHITLEY: Can I respond --

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Sure.

MS. WHITLEY: -- to the question of MSWPA oversight?
Since enactment of MSWPA, there have been no oversight
hearings on it. There has been no opportunity for us to share
with Congress our frustration over certain aspects of the way
the law is working on the ground, so to speak.

as I said earlier, if we’d had any idea of what this

'~ was going to produce in the industry, we would not have signed

off on it. We’ve had some unbelievable things occur. Right
now, it looks like the Department of Labor, as a result of
some activities on the part of Legal Services grantees in New
Jersey, the Department of Labor is going to be requiring
farmers to pay the transpo'rtation of all farm workers from

point of recruitment.
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We’‘ve had a variety of structural 'problems occur
with the way the industry has to make certain benefits
available to farm workers, and it all has come through the
private right of action in MSWPA.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: But you understand my point, the
difficulty of saying that the lawyers are doing something
wrong who are using the laws ﬁhat Congress has enacted. I
mean, it’s difficult position to put the corporation in to say
that in our monitoring or in reauthorization, we’re going to
dc something to say you can‘t use the laws that Congress has
created.

The story is the story where you’ve got
administrative 1law judges, apparently, administrative

agencies, federal judges, apparently state judges, all willing

to go along with this. I think we would be hard pressed to

step in and say, "The law is there. Everybody seems to'éay’
you can use it, but we’re not going to let you use it."

MR. KIRK: Mr. Uddo, I’d like to respond to that.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I’d like to get the witness first,
Mr. Kirk, and then you can.

MS. WHITLEY: Mr. Kirk, can I give you my time? 1I/4 7'

like respond to that.
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MR. KIRX: Go ahead.

MS. WHITLEY: Mr. Uddo, they’re your lawyers. This
is a taxpayer-funded free bar. You have no ability to control
their activity --

CHAIRMAN UDDO: I didn’t say we don’t have the
ability, I’m asking, how do we Jjudge what laws we’re going to
say you can enforce or pursue and what laws you can‘t. I
assume that we would find the ability.

MS. WHITLEY: I think accountability is the key.
Accountability is the key. We have a terrific problem with
LsSC attorneys that we don’t have with the agency that’s
charged with enforcing this statute, and there is definitely a
misconnect, is what I was going to respond for the record.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: Mr. Kirk?

MR. KIRK: My only comment was that I think that you
can give me any 10 lawyers and unlimited funds, and I‘11 put
any city out of business, just filing suits based upon the
laws that are in effect today. To think that every law has to
be perfect is not the answer.

The answer, to me, is that we need to have control
and accountability of attorneys. We need to avoid scorched

earth policies and to try to create some responsiveness and

Diversified HAeporting Services, Inc.
1511 K STREET, N.W. SUITE 643
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202} 628-2121




10
11
i2
13
14
15
16
17
13
19
20
21

22

164
accountability. I think we need to talk about the fact, also,
that we’re not dealing with the majority of the attorneys.

I mean, I think the pecple here will tell you that
the ones they’ve dealt with, that Mr. Wilson dealt with in New
York, certainly there’s a lot of good there, and we’re just
trying to eliminate -- I mean, they’‘re trying to bring forth
some wrongs that they think can be addressed.

CHAIRMAN UDDO: And believe me, I have no guarrel
with that. I mean, the story that you tell is a distressing
story, and I’m disturbed that Legal Services lawyers would be
announcing a policy‘ to embark on the course that you’ve
described. I’'m not sympathetic to it at all.

I say that with some hesitation, because I’m sure,
as youw say, there’s another side that someone could come in
and maybe make me feel somewhat more sympathetic, but on the
surface and the story you tell, I’m not pleased with it, but
in the reauthorization process, I think we’ve got; to find a
way to generalize and be able to deal with problems like that
without, in effect, so restricting Legal Services lawyers that
they don’t really manage to pursue the purpose that Congress
had in mind, and that is to be the lawyers of -the poor.

I appreciate your testimony. We have to break for
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AFTERNOON SESSION

CHAIRMAN UDDC: We’re going to reconvene now that we
have all the members of the committee who